No. 1988-6A

AN ACT

SB 1439

Making appropriations from the Workmen's Compensation Administration Fund to the Department of Labor and Industry to provide for the expenses of administering The Pennsylvania Workmen's Compensation Act and The Pennsylvania Occupational Disease Act for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$15,224,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated from the Workmen's Compensation Administration Fund to the Department of Labor and Industry for the payment of all salaries, wages and other compensation and travel expenses, for contractual services and other expenses necessary for the administration of the act of June 2, 1915 (P.L.736, No.338), known as The Pennsylvania Workmen's Compensation Act, and the act of June 21, 1939 (P.L.566, No.284), known as The Pennsylvania Occupational Disease Act, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.

Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 6th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-7A

AN ACT

HB 2197

Making an appropriation from a restricted revenue account within the General Fund to the Office of Consumer Advocate.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$2,738,000 is hereby appropriated from the restricted revenue account within the General Fund to the Office of Consumer Advocate to provide for the operation of that office for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989.

Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 6th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-8A

AN ACT

HB 2196

Making appropriations from a restricted revenue account within the General Fund and from Federal augmentation funds to the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are specifically appropriated from the restricted revenue account within the General Fund and from Federal augmentation funds to the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission to provide for the operation of the commission for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the purposes and in the amounts shown:

(1) For the salaries, wages and all necessary expenses for the proper operation and administration of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission.

State appropriation.....

\$27,931,000

State

- (i) The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are specifically appropriated to supplement the sum authorized to be billed to utilities for the operation of the commission:
 - (A) "Natural Gas Pipeline Safety" To enforce the regulations of the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act.

Federal appropriation.....

115,000

Federal

(B) "Railroad Safety" - For safety inspectors to survey and patrol over 14,000 miles of trackage to eliminate derailment and provide safe rail travel.

Any Federal funds which the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission receives pursuant to these appropriations shall not be credited to any utility nor used to lower the annual assessment of any utility. Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 6th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-9A

AN ACT

HB 2411

Making appropriations from the Professional Licensure Augmentation Account and from restricted revenue accounts within the General Fund to the Department of State for use by the Bureau of Professional and Occupational Affairs in support of the professional licensure boards assigned thereto.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$12,218,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated from the Professional Licensure Augmentation Account within the General Fund to the Department of State for the operation of the Bureau of Professional and Occupational Affairs for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989.
- Section 2. (a) The sum of \$1,644,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated from the restricted receipts account of the State Board of Medicine, as authorized by section 907(a) of the act of October 15, 1975 (P.L.390, No.111), known as the Health Care Services Malpractice Act, for the operation of said board for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989.
- (b) The sum of \$312,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated from the restricted receipts account of the State Board of Osteopathic Medicine, as authorized by section 907(b) of the Health Care Services Malpractice Act, for the operation of said board for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989.
- (c) The sum of \$129,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated from the restricted receipts account of the State Board of Podiatry, as authorized by section 907(c) of the Health Care Services Malpractice Act, for the operation of said board for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989.
- (d) Each appropriation listed in subsections (a), (b) and (c) shall not be treated as an augmentation to the Department of State, general government appropriation or any other appropriation, but shall be treated and accounted for as separate appropriations respectively.
- Section 3. The additional sum of \$800,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated from the Professional Licensure Augmentation Account within the General Fund to the Department of State for the operation of the Bureau of Professional and Occupational Affairs for the fiscal year July 1, 1987, to June 30, 1988. This sum shall be an addition to any appropriation under the act of July 1, 1987 (P.L.458, No.8A).

Section 4. This act shall take effect as follows:

(1) Sections 3 and 4 shall take effect immediately.

(2) The remainder of this act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 6th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-10A

AN ACT

HB 2413

Making an appropriation from the Public School Employees' Retirement Fund to provide for expenses of the Public School Employees' Retirement Board for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$12,640,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated from the Public School Employees' Retirement Fund to the Public School Employees' Retirement Board for the payment of all salaries, wages and other compensation and travel expenses of the employees and members of the Public School Employees' Retirement Board, for contractual services and other expenses necessary for the proper conduct of the duties, functions and activities of the board for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.

Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 6th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-11A

AN ACT

SB 1436

Making an appropriation from the State Employees' Retirement Fund to provide for expenses of the State Employees' Retirement Board for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$6,031,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated from the State Employees' Retirement Fund to the State Employees' Retirement Board for the payment of all salaries, wages and other compensation and travel expenses of the employees and members of the State Employees' Retirement Board, for contractual services and other expenses necessary for the proper conduct of the duties, functions and activities of the board for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988. Of this sum, not more than \$395,000 shall be expended to open and operate field counseling sites in Pittsburgh and North East, Pennsylvania.

Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 6th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-12A

AN ACT

SB 1440

ever is later.

Making appropriations to the Department of General Services out of various funds for payment of rental charges to The General State Authority.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The following sums are hereby appropriated, out of the funds indicated, to the Department of General Services for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for payment of rental charges to The General State Authority:

Out of the	Fish Fund	\$63,000
Out of the	Boat Fund	2,000
Section 2.	This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediate	ly, which-

APPROVED—The 6th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-13A

AN ACT

HB 2570

Itemizing appropriations required from the Motor License Fund and The State Stores Fund for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the proper operation of the several departments of the Commonwealth and the Pennsylvania State Police authorized to spend Motor License Fund and The State Stores Fund moneys.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 101. Appropriations.

PART II. MOTOR LICENSE FUND APPROPRIATIONS FOR 1988-1989

SUBPART A. MOTOR LICENSE FUND

Section 201. Department of Transportation.

Section 202. Governor.

Section 203. Treasury Department.

Section 204. Department of Education.

Section 205. Department of General Services.

Section 206. Department of Revenue.

Section 207. Pennsylvania State Police.

SUBPART B. AVIATION RESTRICTED REVENUE ACCOUNT

Section 221. Department of Transportation.

Section 222. Treasury Department.

SUBPART C. THE STATE STORES FUND

Section 241. Pennsylvania State Police.

PART III. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 301. Lapsing of unused funds.

Section 302. Effective date.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

PART I GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 101. Appropriations.—(a) Motor License Fund.—The following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated from the Motor License Fund to the hereinafter named agencies of the Commonwealth for the payment of salaries, wages and other compensation and

travel expenses of the duly elected or appointed officers and employees of the Commonwealth, for contractual services and other expenses necessary for the proper conduct of the duties, functions and activities for the purposes hereinafter set forth for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.

- (b) Aviation Restricted Revenue Account.—The following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated from the Aviation Restricted Revenue Account in the Motor License Fund to the hereinafter named agencies of the Commonwealth for the purposes set forth herein for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.
- (c) State Stores Fund.—The following sum, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated from The State Stores Fund to the hereinafter named agency of the Commonwealth for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.

PART II MOTOR LICENSE FUND APPROPRIATIONS FOR 1988-1989

SUBPART A MOTOR LICENSE FUND

Section 201. Department of Transportation.—The following amounts are appropriated to the Department of Transportation:

For the salaries, wages and all necessary expenses for the proper administration of the Department of Transportation, including the State Transportation Commission and the State Transportation Advisory Committee and the Statewide coordination of municipal

State appropriation.....

services.

22,544,000

For the salaries, wages and all necessary expenses for the operation of the Highway and Safety Improvement Programs, including planning and research, design, engineering, right-of-way acquisition and the operation of the engineering district facilities and liaison services with communities on local road engineering and construction activities. Of this amount, \$300,000 shall be allocated

Federal State

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-13A 2113

by the department for a timber bridge	
research, design and construction program.	
State appropriation	183,860,000
For the salaries, wages and all necessary	
expenses for the administration and opera-	
tion of the maintenance program for State	
roads, bridges, tunnels and structures,	
including the operation of the county mainte-	
nance district facilities.	
State appropriation	615,887,000
For supplemental maintenance program	
payments. This appropriation shall be allo-	
cated so as to insure that no county receives a	
maintenance allocation in fiscal year 1988-	
1989 that is less than the allocation such	
county received in fiscal year 1987-1988.	
State appropriation	9,184,000
For the construction of salt storage facili-	
ties.	
State appropriation	1,500,000
For reinvestment in Department of Trans-	
portation facilities.	
State appropriation	3,000,000
For rest area improvements.	
State appropriation	2,000,000
For the salaries, wages and all necessary	
expenses for the administration of the Traffic	
Safety Program and the administration and	
operation of the operator and vehicle regis-	
tration programs.	
State appropriation	48,364,000
For motor vehicle insurance compliance.	
State appropriation	994,000
For rental payments to the State Highway	
and Bridge Authority for projects con-	
structed with funds borrowed by the author-	
ity.	
State appropriation	24,300,000
For payments to municipalities to assist in	
maintenance and construction costs of roads.	
State appropriation	156,798,000
For supplemental payments to municipali-	
ties to assist in maintenance and construction	
costs of roads in accordance with 75 Pa.C.S.	
Ch. 93 (relating to supplemental funding for	
municipal highway maintenance).	
State appropriation	5,000,000

For local bridge inspections.		
State appropriation		800,000
For a program for the installation, replace-		
ment and repair of traffic signs or directional		
signs which pose safety hazards to the driving		
public or which assist the driving public in		
locating attractions within this Common-		
wealth.		
State appropriation		15,000,000
Section 202. Governor.—The following		20,000,000
amounts are appropriated to the Governor		
for Executive Offices:	Federal	State
For comptroller operations related to the	1 odorar	Sidio
Motor License Fund.		
State appropriation		4,127,000
Section 203. Treasury Department.—		4,127,000
The following amounts are appropriated to		
the Treasury Department:	Federal	State
For payment of refunds of liquid fuels	rederar	State
taxes for agricultural use to which the Com-		
monwealth is not entitled.		
State appropriation		4 200 000
For the payment of salaries, wages and all		4,200,000
necessary expenses in the proper administra-	•	
tion of the program to refund liquid fuels		
taxes to which the Commonwealth is not enti-		
tled.		
		254 000
State appropriation		254,000
For the payment of approved claims for		
the refunding of liquid fuels taxes and fuel		
use taxes to which the Commonwealth is not		
entitled.		
State appropriation		350,000
For the payment of approved claims for		
the refunding of emergency liquid fuels tax		
moneys to which the Commonwealth is not		
entitled.		1 000
State appropriation		1,000
Refunding liquid fuels tax - political subdi-		
vision use.		2 2 4 2 2 2 2
State appropriation		2,250,000
Refunding liquid fuels tax - volunteer fire		
companies, volunteer ambulance services and		
volunteer rescue squads.		1/0 000
State appropriation		160,000
Refunding liquid fuels tax - to the Boat		
Fund for the use of the Fish Commission for		

the improvement of the waters of Pennsyl-		
vania on which motorboats are permitted to		
operate.		
State appropriation		1,500,000
For the payment of principal and interest		
requirements on general obligation bonds		
issued for transportation projects.		
State appropriation		165,051,000
For payment of principal and interest		
requirements on general obligation bonds		
issued for General State Authority projects.		501 000
State appropriation		521,000
For interest payments on obligations issued		
for the Advance Construction Interstate		
Program.		12 100 000
State appropriation		12,180,000
For payment of the compensation of the		
Commonwealth's loan and transfer agent for		
services and expenses in connection with the registration, transfer and payment of interest		
on bonds of the Commonwealth and other		
services required to be performed by the loan		
and transfer agent.		
State appropriation		131,000
Section 204. Department of Educa-		151,000
tion.—The following amounts are appropri-		
ated to the Department of Education:	Federal	State
For administration of the school safe		
driving program and for payments to school		
districts or joint school organizations for		
driver education courses.		
State appropriation		2,300,000
Section 205. Department of General Ser-		
vices.—The following amounts are appropri-		
ated to the Department of General Services:	Federal	State
For the payment of rental charges to The		
General State Authority.		1 155 000
State appropriation		1,177,000
For payment of tort claims.		26 500 000
State appropriation For an Asbestos Response Program.		26,500,000
State appropriation		500,000
Section 206. Department of Revenue.—		500,000
The following amounts are appropriated to		
the Department of Revenue:	Federal	State
For the proper administration and enforce-		
ment of the regulations under the Liquid		
→		

Fuels Tax Act, Motor Carriers Road Tax Act and Bus Compact.		
State appropriation Section 207. Pennsylvania State		6,830,000
Police.—The following amounts are appropriated to the Pennsylvania State Police: For transfer to the General Fund to finance the Traffic Control and the Traffic Safety Facilities Program of the Pennsylvania State	Federal	State
Police. State appropriation For transfer to the General Fund to finance the Municipal Police Officers' Education and Training Commission.		158,473,000
State appropriation For transfer to the General Fund to finance adequate replacement patrol vehicles.		2,420,000
State appropriation		4,759,000
SUBPART B AVIATION RESTRICTED REVENUE	ACCOUN	ΝΤ
Section 221. Department of Transportation.—The following amounts are appropriated to the Department of Transportation: For payment for aviation operations, including the operation and maintenance of State-owned aircraft, payment of general expenses, supplies, printing and equipment; for the development and maintenance of State airports and the maintenance and repair of landing fields, intermediate landing fields, landing field equipment, beacon sites and other navigation facilities; and for the encouragement and development of civil aeronautics.	Federal	State
State appropriation		10,160,000
and other aeronautical facilities. State appropriation For payments to public airports for runway rehabilitation.		4,500,000
State appropriation		500,000

144,000

238,000
1,500,000
State

SUBPART C THE STATE STORES FUND

State appropriation.....

PART III MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 301. Lapsing of unused funds.—(a) Except as otherwise provided by law or in subsection (b), that part of all appropriations in Part II unexpended, uncommitted or unencumbered as of June 30, 1989, shall automatically lapse as of that date.

- (b) (1) The appropriation in section 201 for traffic signs and directional signs shall be a two-year continuing appropriation.
- (2) The appropriations in section 221 for airport development, runway rehabilitation, business airport grants and real estate tax rebate payments shall be two-year continuing appropriations.

Section 302. Effective date.—This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 12th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-14A

A SUPPLEMENT

SB 1443

To the act of April 1, 1863 (P.L.213, No.227), entitled "An act to accept the grant of Public Lands, by the United States, to the several states, for the endowment of Agricultural Colleges," making appropriations for carrying the same into effect; providing for a basis for payments of such appropriations; and providing a method of accounting for the funds appropriated.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. In order to carry into effect the act of Congress, approved July 2, 1862, granting public land to the several states for educational purposes, and subsequent acts of Congress related thereto, and the act of the General Assembly of Pennsylvania accepting the provisions and conditions of said acts of Congress and pledging the faith of the State to carry the same into effect, the following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated to the Trustees of The Pennsylvania State University for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the purposes and in the amounts as shown:

(1)	For educational and general expenses	\$154,184,000
(2)	For cost of research	13,476,000
(3)	For instruction - Doctor of Medicine only	4,287,000
(4)	For cost of agricultural research	16,039,000
(5)	For cost of agricultural extension services	18,325,000
(6)	For the cost of operating Elizabethtown Hospital	4,515,000
(7)	To enhance the recruitment and retention of disad-	
antag	ged students	200,000

- Section 2. Payments to The Pennsylvania State University on account of the appropriations for all items as provided in section 1 shall be made on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.
- Section 3. If necessary, The Pennsylvania State University may transfer funds among the appropriations listed in section 1(1), (2), (4) and (5): Provided, That the aggregate amount transferred into or out of each appropriation during the fiscal year shall not exceed 5% of the amount specifically appropriated for that purpose.
- Section 4. (a) Payments to The Pennsylvania State University of the appropriations provided in section 1 shall be made monthly during the fiscal year.
- (b) Such monthly payments shall be made in accordance with the provisions of section 2 on the basis of estimated costs. The estimate of costs shall be submitted by The Pennsylvania State University to the Secretary of Education, the General Assembly and the State Treasurer not later than 30 days prior to the date on which such payment is to be made.

Section 5. Notwithstanding any provision of the General Appropriation Act of 1988 relating to the payment of retirement expenses, the Trustees of The Pennsylvania State University shall make all required payments to the State Employees' Retirement Fund from the funds appropriated pursuant to this act.

- Section 6. (a) The Pennsylvania State University shall apply the moneys appropriated by this act only for such purposes as are permitted in this act and shall at all times maintain proper records showing the application of such moneys. Not later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year to which this act relates, The Pennsylvania State University shall file, with the Secretary of Education, the General Assembly and the Auditor General of the Commonwealth, a statement setting forth the amounts and purposes of all expenditures made from moneys appropriated by this act and other university accounts during said fiscal year, as provided in section 2, used as a basis for receipt of any appropriation during said fiscal year.
- (b) Such statement of expenditures and costs shall be reviewed by the Auditor General of the Commonwealth, and he shall have the right, in respect to the moneys appropriated by this act, to audit and disallow expenditures made for purposes not permitted by this act and to cause such sums to be recovered and paid by The Pennsylvania State University to the State Treasurer. In respect to expenditures made by the university from moneys other than those appropriated by this act, the Auditor General shall have the right to review only, and he shall file annually with the General Assembly such information concerning such expenditures as the General Assembly or any of its committees may require.
- Section 7. A report shall be submitted to the Governor and the Appropriations and Education Committees of the Senate and House of Representatives and shall include data for all programs except the Doctor of Medicine program. The report, to be submitted prior to September 1, 1989, shall cover the 12-month period beginning with the summer term 1988 and shall include:
- (1) The following counts and distributions for each term during the period:
- (i) The definitions and numbers of faculty members employed full time, of faculty members employed part time, of full-time students enrolled in graduate courses, of full-time students enrolled in undergraduate courses, of part-time students enrolled in graduate courses and of part-time students enrolled in undergraduate courses.
- (ii) The total numbers of undergraduate student credit hours, divided into lower division and upper division course levels, and of graduate student credit hours, divided into three course levels—master's, first professional and doctoral.
- (iii) The number of different courses scheduled by level of instruction and the number of sections of individual instruction scheduled by level of instruction, each further subdivided by two-digit Classification of Instructional Program (CIP) categories of instructional programs of higher education as defined by the National Center for Education Statistics, United States Department of Education.

- (iv) The number of terms scheduled and the dates thereof.
- (2) For the summer term and the following academic year in total and for each two-digit CIP program category, a classification of faculty members or other professional employees by title, including: professor, associate professor, assistant professor, instructor, lecturer, research associate, librarian and academic administrator; faculty members or other professional employees under each title to be subdivided by type of assignment: teaching and nonteaching, and each such set of faculty members or other professional employees to be further subdivided by type of employment: full-time or part-time and the following aggregates for each such subdivided classification:
- (i) The number of faculty and other professional employees and their full-time equivalence in instructional and noninstructional functions.
- (ii) The sum of credits assigned to undergraduate classroom courses and the sum of credits assigned to graduate classroom courses taught, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (iii) The sum of credits assigned to undergraduate individual instruction courses and the sum of credits assigned to graduate individual instruction courses taught, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (iv) The sum of undergraduate classroom student credit hours and the sum of graduate classroom student credit hours generated, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (v) The sum of undergraduate individual instruction student credit hours and the sum of graduate individual instruction student credit hours generated, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (vi) The total salary paid for instructional functions and for noninstructional functions and the amount of this salary paid for each of these functions from university funds, Federal funds and other funds.
- (3) For each term of the period covered for each faculty member employed full time identified by two-digit CIP program category and title, the report shall contain an analysis of the average hours per week spent in university-related activities, stating specifically hours spent in undergraduate classroom contact and graduate classroom contact, hours spent in preparation, hours spent in research and hours spent in public service.
- Section 8. In addition to the requirements in section 7 relative to this appropriation, the report covering the 12-month period beginning with the summer term 1988 shall include for all programs of the university:
- (1) Minimum number of credits required for a baccalaureate degree and for a master's degree.
- (2) Number of bachelor's degrees, master's degrees, first professional degrees and doctoral degrees awarded in 1986, 1987, 1988 and estimated 1989.
- Section 9. The Pennsylvania State University shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.

Section 10. The Pennsylvania State University shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements required under the provisions of this act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual, United States Department of Health, Education and Welfare (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."

Section 11. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. ***	
(1) For educational and general expenses	\$154,184,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$150,615,000.	
(2) For cost of research	13,476,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$13,164,000.	
(3) For instruction - Doctor of Medicine only	4,287,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$4,188,000.	
(4) For cost of agricultural research	16,039,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$15,668,000.	
(5) For cost of agricultural extension services	18,325,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$17,901,000.	
(6) For the cost of operating Elizabethtown Hospital	4,515,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$4,411,000.	
* * *	

The amounts approved for this institution provide a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88, after the removal of expenditures which were intended to occur one time.

No. 1988-15A

A SUPPLEMENT

SB 1444

To the act of July 28, 1966 (3rd Sp.Sess., P.L.87, No.3), entitled "An act providing for the establishment and operation of the University of Pittsburgh as an instrumentality of the Commonwealth to serve as a State-related university in the higher education system of the Commonwealth; providing for change of name; providing for the composition of the board of trustees; terms of trustees, and the power and duties of such trustees; authorizing appropriations in amounts to be fixed annually by the General Assembly; providing for the auditing of accounts of expenditures from said appropriations; providing for public support and capital improvements; authorizing the issuance of bonds exempt from taxation within the Commonwealth; requiring the chancellor to make an annual report of the operations of the University of Pittsburgh,' making appropriations for carrying the same into effect; providing for a basis for payments of such appropriations; and providing a method of accounting for the funds appropriated.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated to the Trustees of the University of Pittsburgh for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the purposes and in the amounts as shown:

For educational and general evnences	\$105,661,000
	6,046,000
For operation of dental clinics in the school of den-	
	1,020,000
For operations of the Titusville Campus	812,000
To enhance the recruitment and retention of disad-	
ged students	200,000
	For operations of the Titusville Campus

- Section 2. Payments to the University of Pittsburgh on account of the appropriations for all items as provided in section 1 shall be made on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.
- Section 3. If necessary, the University of Pittsburgh may transfer funds between the appropriations listed in section 1(1) and (2): Provided, That the aggregate amount transferred into or out of each appropriation during the fiscal year shall not exceed 5% of the amount specifically appropriated for that purpose.
- Section 4. (a) Payments to the University of Pittsburgh of the appropriations provided in section 1 shall be made monthly during the fiscal year.
- (b) Such monthly payments shall be made in accordance with the provisions of section 2 on the basis of estimated costs. The estimate of costs shall be submitted by the University of Pittsburgh to the Secretary of Education, the General Assembly and the State Treasurer not later than 30 days prior to the date on which such payment is to be made.

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-15A 2123

Section 5. (a) The University of Pittsburgh shall apply the moneys appropriated by this act only for such purposes as are permitted in this act and shall at all times maintain proper records showing the application of such moneys. Not later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year to which this act relates, the University of Pittsburgh shall file, with the Secretary of Education, the General Assembly, the Auditor General of the Commonwealth and the chief administrator of each branch campus, a statement setting forth the amounts and purposes of all expenditures made from moneys appropriated by this act and other university accounts during said fiscal year, as provided in section 2, used as a basis for receipt of any appropriation during said fiscal year.

- (b) Such statement of expenditures and costs shall be reviewed by the Auditor General of the Commonwealth, and he shall have the right, in respect to the moneys appropriated by this act, to audit and disallow expenditures made for purposes not permitted by this act and to cause such sums to be recovered and paid by the University of Pittsburgh to the State Treasurer. In respect to expenditures made by the university from moneys other than those appropriated by this act, the Auditor General shall have the right to review only, and he shall file annually with the General Assembly such information concerning such expenditures as the General Assembly or any of its committees may require.
- Section 6. A report shall be submitted to the Governor and the Appropriations and Education Committees of the Senate and House of Representatives and shall include data for all programs, except for the Doctor of Medicine program. The report, to be submitted prior to September 1, 1989, shall cover the 12-month period beginning with the summer term 1988 and shall include:
- (1) The following counts and distributions for each term during the period:
- (i) The definitions and numbers of faculty members employed full time, of faculty members employed part time, of full-time students enrolled in graduate courses, of full-time students enrolled in undergraduate courses, of part-time students enrolled in graduate courses and of part-time students enrolled in undergraduate courses.
- (ii) The total numbers of undergraduate student credit hours, divided into lower division and upper division course levels, and of graduate student credit hours, divided into three course levels—master's, first professional and doctoral.
- (iii) The number of different courses scheduled by level of instruction and the number of sections of individual instruction scheduled by level of instruction, each further subdivided by two-digit Classification of Instructional Program (CIP) categories of instructional programs of higher education as defined by the National Center for Education Statistics, United States Department of Education.
 - (iv) The number of terms scheduled and the dates thereof.
- (2) For the summer term and the following academic year in total and for each two-digit CIP program category, a classification of faculty members or

other professional employees by title, including: professor, associate professor, assistant professor, instructor, lecturer, research associate, librarian and academic administrator; faculty members or other professional employees under each title to be subdivided by type of assignment: teaching and nonteaching, and each such set of faculty members or other professional employees to be further subdivided by type of employment: full-time or parttime and the following aggregates for each such subdivided classification:

LAWS OF PENNSYLVANIA

- (i) The number of faculty and other professional employees and their full-time equivalence in instructional and noninstructional functions.
- (ii) The sum of credits assigned to undergraduate classroom courses and the sum of credits assigned to graduate classroom courses taught, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (iii) The sum of credits assigned to undergraduate individual instruction courses and the sum of credits assigned to graduate individual instruction courses taught, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (iv) The sum of undergraduate classroom student credit hours and the sum of graduate classroom student credit hours generated, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (v) The sum of undergraduate individual instruction student credit hours and the sum of graduate individual instruction student credit hours generated, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (vi) The total salary paid for instructional functions and for noninstructional functions and the amount of this salary paid for each of these functions from university funds, Federal funds and other funds.
- (3) For each term of the period covered for each faculty member employed full time identified by two-digit CIP program category and title, the report shall contain an analysis of the average hours per week spent in university-related activities, stating specifically hours spent in undergraduate classroom contact and graduate classroom contact, hours spent in preparation, hours spent in research and hours spent in public service.
- Section 7. In addition to the requirements in section 6 relative to this appropriation, the report covering the 12-month period beginning with the summer term 1988 shall include for all programs of the university:
- (1) Minimum number of credits required for a baccalaureate degree and for a master's degree.
- (2) Number of bachelor's degrees, master's degrees, first professional degrees and doctoral degrees awarded in 1986, 1987, 1988 and estimated 1989.
- The University of Pittsburgh shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- The University of Pittsburgh shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements required under the provi-

sions of this act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual, United States Department of Health, Education and Welfare (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."

Section 10. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. ***	
(1) For educational and general expenses	\$105,661,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$103,216,000.	
(2) For instruction - Doctor of Medicine only	6,046,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$5,907,000.	
(3) For operation of dental clinics in the school of den-	
tistry	1,020,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$997,000.	
(4) For operations of the Titusville Campus	812,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$793,000.	
* * *	

The amounts approved for this institution provide a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88, after the removal of expenditures which were intended to occur one time.

\$115,764,000

No. 1988-16A

A SUPPLEMENT

SB 1445

To the act of November 30, 1965 (P.L.843, No.355), entitled "An act providing for the establishment and operation of Temple University as an instrumentality of the Commonwealth to serve as a State-related university in the higher education system of the Commonwealth; providing for change of name; providing for the composition of the board of trustees; terms of trustees, and the power and duties of such trustees; providing for preference to Pennsylvania residents in tuition; providing for public support and capital improvements; authorizing appropriations in amounts to be fixed annually by the General Assembly; providing for the auditing of accounts of expenditures from said appropriations; authorizing the issuance of bonds exempt from taxation within the Commonwealth; requiring the President to make an annual report of the operations of Temple University," making appropriations for carrying the same into effect; providing for a basis for payments of such appropriations; and providing a method of accounting for the funds appropriated.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated to the Trustees of Temple University for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the purposes and in the amounts as shown:

(2)	For instruction - Doctor of Medicine only	8,049,000
(3)	For operation of dental clinics in the school of den-	
tistry	***************************************	1,020,000

(1) For educational and general expenses.....

Section 2. Payments to Temple University on account of the appropriations for all items as provided in section 1 shall be made on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.

Section 3. If necessary, Temple University may transfer funds among the appropriations listed in section 1(1) and (2): Provided, That the aggregate amount transferred into or out of each appropriation during the fiscal year shall not exceed 5% of the amount specifically appropriated for that purpose.

Section 4. (a) Payment to Temple University of the appropriations provided in section 1 shall be made monthly during the fiscal year.

(b) Such monthly payments shall be made in accordance with the provisions of section 2 on the basis of estimated costs. The estimate of costs shall be submitted by Temple University to the Secretary of Education, the General Assembly and the State Treasurer not later than 30 days prior to the date on which such payment is to be made.

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-16A 2127

Section 5. (a) Temple University shall apply the moneys appropriated by this act only for such purposes as are permitted in this act and shall at all times maintain proper records showing the application of such moneys. Not later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year to which this act relates, Temple University shall file, with the Secretary of Education, the General Assembly and the Auditor General of the Commonwealth, a statement setting forth the amounts and purposes of all expenditures made from moneys appropriated by this act and other university accounts during said fiscal year, as provided in section 2, used as a basis for receipt of any appropriation during said fiscal year.

- (b) Such statement of expenditures and costs shall be reviewed by the Auditor General of the Commonwealth, and he shall have the right, in respect to the moneys appropriated by this act, to audit and disallow expenditures made for purposes not permitted by this act and to cause such sums to be recovered and paid by Temple University to the State Treasurer. In respect to expenditures made by the university from moneys other than those appropriated by this act, the Auditor General shall have the right to review only, and he shall file annually with the General Assembly such information concerning said expenditures as the General Assembly or any of its committees may require.
- Section 6. A report shall be submitted to the Governor and the Appropriations and Education Committees of the Senate and House of Representatives and shall include data for all programs except the Doctor of Medicine program. The report, to be submitted prior to September 1, 1989, shall cover the 12-month period beginning with the summer term 1988 and shall include:
- (1) The following counts and distributions for each term during the period:
- (i) The definitions and numbers of faculty members employed full time, of faculty members employed part time, of full-time students enrolled in graduate courses, of full-time students enrolled in undergraduate courses, of part-time students enrolled in graduate courses and of part-time students enrolled in undergraduate courses.
- (ii) The total numbers of undergraduate student credit hours, divided into lower division and upper division course levels, and of graduate student credit hours divided into three course levels—master's, first professional and doctoral.
- (iii) The number of different courses scheduled by level of instruction and the number of sections of individual instruction scheduled by level of instruction, each further subdivided by two-digit Classification of Instructional Program (CIP) categories of instructional programs of higher education as defined by the National Center for Education Statistics, United States Department of Education.
 - (iv) The number of terms scheduled and the dates thereof.
- (2) For the summer term and the following academic year in total and for each two-digit CIP program category, a classification of faculty members or other professional employees by title, including: professor, associate professor, assistant professor, instructor, lecturer, research associate, librarian and

academic administrator; faculty members or other professional employees under each title to be subdivided by type of assignment: teaching and non-teaching, and each such set of faculty members or other professional employees to be further subdivided by type of employment: full-time or part-time and the following aggregates for each such subdivided classification:

- (i) The number of faculty and other professional employees and their full-time equivalence in instructional and noninstructional functions.
- (ii) The sum of credits assigned to undergraduate classroom courses and the sum of credits assigned to graduate classroom courses taught, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (iii) The sum of credits assigned to undergraduate individual instruction courses and the sum of credits assigned to graduate individual instruction courses taught, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (iv) The sum of undergraduate classroom student credit hours and the sum of graduate classroom student credit hours generated, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (v) The sum of undergraduate individual instruction student credit hours and the sum of graduate individual instruction student credit hours generated, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (vi) The total salary paid for instructional functions and for noninstructional functions and the amount of this salary paid for each of these functions from university funds, Federal funds and other funds.
- (3) For each term of the period covered for each faculty member employed full time identified by two-digit CIP program category and title, the report shall contain an analysis of the average hours per week spent in university-related activities, stating specifically hours spent in undergraduate classroom contact and graduate classroom contact, hours spent in preparation, hours spent in research and hours spent in public service.
- Section 7. In addition to the requirements in section 6 relative to this appropriation, each report covering the 12-month period beginning with the summer term 1988 shall include for all programs of the university:
- (1) Minimum number of credits required for a baccalaureate degree and for a master's degree.
- (2) Number of bachelor's degrees, master's degrees, first professional degrees and doctoral degrees awarded in 1986, 1987, 1988 and estimated 1989.
- Section 8. Temple University shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 9. Temple University shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements required under the provisions of this act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-16A 2129

the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."

Section 10. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. ***	
(1) For educational and general expenses	\$115,764,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$113,084,000.	
(2) For instruction - Doctor of Medicine only	8,049,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$7,863,000.	
(3) For operation of dental clinics in the school of den-	
tistry	1,020,000
This item is approved in the sum of \$997,000.	

* * *

The amounts approved for this institution provide a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88, after the removal of expenditures which were intended to occur one time.

No. 1988-17A

A SUPPLEMENT

SB 1446

To the act of July 7, 1972 (P.L.743, No.176), entitled "An act providing for the establishment and operation of Lincoln University as an instrumentality of the Commonwealth to serve as a State-related institution in the higher education system of the Commonwealth; providing for change of name; providing for the composition of the board of trustees; terms of trustees, and the power and duties of such trustees; providing for preference to Pennsylvania residents in tuition; authorizing appropriations in amounts to be fixed annually by the General Assembly; providing for the auditing of accounts of expenditures from said appropriations; providing for public support and capital improvements; authorizing the issuance of bonds exempt from taxation within the Commonwealth; requiring the President to make an annual report of the operations of Lincoln University," making appropriations for carrying the same into effect; providing for a basis for payments of such appropriations; and providing a method of accounting for the funds appropriated.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated to the Trustees of Lincoln University, Chester County, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the purposes and in the amounts as shown:

- Section 2. Payments to Lincoln University on account of the appropriations for the items provided in section 1 shall be made on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.
- Section 3. (a) Payments to Lincoln University of the appropriations provided in section 1 shall be made monthly during the fiscal year.
- (b) Such monthly payments shall be made in accordance with the provisions of section 2 on the basis of estimated costs. The estimate of costs shall be submitted by Lincoln University to the Secretary of Education, the General Assembly and the State Treasurer not later than 30 days prior to the date on which such payment is to be made.
- Section 4. (a) Lincoln University shall apply the moneys appropriated by this act only for such purposes as are permitted in this act and shall at all times maintain proper records showing the application of such moneys. Not later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year to which this act relates, Lincoln University shall file, with the Secretary of Education, the General Assembly and the Auditor General of the Commonwealth, a statement setting forth the amounts and purposes of all expenditures made from moneys appropriated by this act and costs, as provided in section 2, used as a basis for receipt of any appropriation during said fiscal year.

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-17A 2131

(b) Such statement of expenditures and costs shall be reviewed by the Auditor General of the Commonwealth, and he shall have the right, in respect to the moneys appropriated by this act, to audit and disallow expenditures made for purposes not permitted by this act and to cause such sums to be recovered and paid by Lincoln University to the State Treasurer. In respect to expenditures made by the university from moneys other than those appropriated by this act, the Auditor General shall have the right to review only, and he shall file annually with the General Assembly such information concerning said expenditures as the General Assembly or any of its committees may require.

- Section 5. A report shall be submitted to the Governor and the Appropriations and Education Committees of the Senate and House of Representatives and shall include data for all programs. The report, to be submitted prior to September 1, 1989, shall cover the 12-month period beginning with the summer term 1988 and shall include:
- (1) The following counts and distributions for each term during the period:
- (i) The definitions and numbers of faculty members employed full time, of faculty members employed part time, of full-time students enrolled in graduate courses, of full-time students enrolled in undergraduate courses, of part-time students enrolled in graduate courses and of part-time students enrolled in undergraduate courses.
- (ii) The total numbers of undergraduate student credit hours, divided into lower division and upper division course levels, and of graduate student credit hours, divided into three course levels—master's, first professional and doctoral.
- (iii) The number of different courses scheduled by level of instruction and the number of sections of individual instruction scheduled by level of instruction, each further subdivided by two-digit Classification of Instructional Program (CIP) categories of instructional programs of higher education as defined by the National Center for Education Statistics, United States Department of Education.
 - (iv) The number of terms scheduled and the dates thereof.
- (2) For the summer term and the following academic year in total and for each two-digit CIP program category, a classification of faculty members or other professional employees by title, including: professor, associate professor, assistant professor, instructor, lecturer, research associate, librarian and academic administrator; faculty members or other professional employees under each title to be subdivided by type of assignment: teaching and non-teaching, and each such set of faculty members or other professional employees to be further subdivided by type of employment: full-time or part-time and the following aggregates for each such subdivided classification:
- (i) The number of faculty and other professional employees and their full-time equivalence in instructional and noninstructional functions.
- (ii) The sum of credits assigned to undergraduate classroom courses and the sum of credits assigned to graduate classroom courses taught, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.

- (iii) The sum of credits assigned to undergraduate individual instruction courses and the sum of credits assigned to graduate individual instruction courses taught, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (iv) The sum of undergraduate classroom student credit hours and the sum of graduate classroom student credit hours generated, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (v) The sum of undergraduate individual instruction student credit hours and the sum of graduate individual instruction student credit hours generated, divided into lower division, upper division, master's, first professional and doctoral course levels.
- (vi) The total salary paid for instructional functions and for noninstructional functions and the amount of this salary paid for each of these functions from university funds. Federal funds and other funds.
- (3) For each term of the period covered for each faculty member employed full time identified by two-digit CIP program category and title, the report shall contain an analysis of the average hours per week spent in university-related activities, stating specifically hours spent in undergraduate classroom contact and graduate classroom contact, hours spent in preparation, hours spent in research and hours spent in public service.
- Section 6. In addition to the requirements in section 5 relative to this appropriation, the report covering the 12-month period beginning with the summer term 1988 shall include for all programs of the university:
- (1) Minimum number of credits required for a baccalaureate degree and for a master's degree.
- (2) Number of bachelor's degrees, master's degrees, first professional degrees and doctoral degrees awarded in 1986, 1987, 1988 and estimated 1989.
- Section 7. Lincoln University shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 8. Lincoln University shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements required under the provisions of this act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual, United States Department of Health, Education and Welfare (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 9. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Act 1988-17A 2133

Section 1. ***

The amount approved for this institution provides a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88, after the removal of expenditures which were intended to occur one time.

No. 1988-18A

AN ACT

SB 1447

Making appropriations to the Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated to the Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the purposes and in the amounts as shown:

(1)	For instruction, excluding Veterinary Medicine pro-	
grams and Doctor of Medicine		\$15,913,000
(2)	For dental clinics	1,020,000
(3)	For instruction in the Doctor of Medicine program	4,396,000
(4)	For instruction in Veterinary Medicine programs	
only		7,658,000
(5)	For the New Bolton Animal Center	3,525,000
(6)	For the Center for Animal Health and Productivity.	1,158,000
(7)	For a biological waste incinerator at the New Bolton	
Animal Center		400,000
(8)	For food and animal clinics and services	1,899,000
(9)	For the Mark W. Allam Dairy Cattle Teaching and	
Research Facility		324,000
~ .		

- Section 2. Payments to the University of Pennsylvania on account of the appropriations for the items provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Secretary of Education on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.
- Section 3. The University of Pennsylvania shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The University of Pennsylvania shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Act 1988-18A 2135

Section 1. *** (1) For instruction, excluding Veterinary Medicine pro-			
grams and Doctor of Medicine	\$15,913,000		
This item is approved in the sum of \$15,545,000.			
(2) For dental clinics	1,020,000		
This item is approved in the sum of \$997,000.			
(3) For instruction in the Doctor of Medicine program	4,396,000		
This item is approved in the sum of \$4,295,000.			
(4) For instruction in Veterinary Medicine programs			
only	7,658,000		
This item is approved in the sum of \$7,481,000.			
(5) For the New Bolton Animal Center	3,525,000		
This item is approved in the sum of \$3,338,000.			
(6) For the Center for Animal Health and Productivity.	1,158,000		
I withhold my approval from this entire item.			
(7) For a biological waste incinerator at the New Bolton			
Animal Center	400,000		
I withhold my approval from this entire item.			
(8) For food and animal clinics and services	1,899,000		
This item is approved in the sum of \$1,856,000.			
(9) For the Mark W. Allam Dairy Cattle Teaching and			
Research Facility	324,000		
I withhold my approval from this entire item.			

The amounts approved for this institution provide a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88, after the removal of expenditures which were intended to occur one time.

No. 1988-19A

AN ACT

SB 1448

Making an appropriation to the Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania for cardiovascular studies.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$133,000 is hereby appropriated to the Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for cardiovascular studies. Payment of this appropriation shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments.

Section 2. The University of Pennsylvania shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.

Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-20A

AN ACT

SB 1449

Making an appropriation to the Trustees of Drexel University, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$5,595,000 is hereby appropriated to the Trustees of Drexel University, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction and student aid.

Section 2. Payments to Drexel University on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Education in equal quarterly payments.

Section 3. The Drexel University shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.

Section 4. Drexel University shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."

Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. The sum of \$5,595,000 is hereby appropriated to the Trustees of Drexel University, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction and student aid.

This item is approved in the sum of \$5,466,000.

The amount approved for this institution provides a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88.

No. 1988-21A

AN ACT

SB 1450

Making appropriations to the Thomas Jefferson University, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. (a) The sum of \$5,934,000 is hereby appropriated to the Thomas Jefferson University, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction in the Doctor of Medicine program.
- (b) The sum of \$4,226,000 is hereby appropriated to the Thomas Jefferson University, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the general maintenance of the Thomas Jefferson University, including the College of Allied Health Sciences, student aid and Children's Heart Hospital.
- Section 2. Payments to the Thomas Jefferson University on account of the appropriations provided in section 1(a) and (b) shall be made quarterly by the Secretary of Education on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.
- Section 3. The Thomas Jefferson University shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Departments of Education and Health shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The Thomas Jefferson University shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. (a) The sum of \$5,934,000 is hereby appropriated to the Thomas Jefferson University, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction in the Doctor of Medicine program.

This item is approved in the sum of \$5,797,000.

(b) The sum of \$4,226,000 is hereby appropriated to the Thomas Jefferson University, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the general maintenance of the Thomas Jefferson University, including the College of Allied Health Sciences, student aid and Children's Heart Hospital.

This item is approved in the sum of \$4,128,000.

The amounts approved for this institution provide a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88.

No. 1988-22A

AN ACT

SB 1451

Making an appropriation to the Trustees of Jefferson Medical College and Hospital of Philadelphia for a comprehensive program relating to Tay-Sachs disease.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$56,000 is hereby appropriated to the Trustees of Jefferson Medical College and Hospital, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for a comprehensive program relating to persons with Tay-Sachs disease.

Section 2. Payment to Jefferson Medical College and Hospital on account of the appropriation relating to Tay-Sachs disease as-provided for in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments and shall be conditioned upon a program which shall include the detection of Tay-Sachs disease in the community, counseling of individuals and families, education of the public, coordination of research into the treatment for Tay-Sachs disease and the expansion of genetic diagnostic services and treatment of persons with the disease.

Section 3. Jefferson Medical College and Hospital shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.

Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-23A

AN ACT

SB 1452

Making an appropriation to the Franklin Institute Science Museum.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$558,000 is hereby appropriated to the Franklin Institute Science Museum, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the maintenance of the institute. No part of this appropriation shall be used in support of the institute's research laboratories.

Section 2. Payments to the Franklin Institute Science Museum on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Executive Director of the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission.

Section 3. The Franklin Institute Science Museum shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission shall prescribe.

Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-24A

AN ACT

SB 1453

Making appropriations to St. Christopher's Hospital, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. (a) The sum of \$796,000 is hereby appropriated to St. Christopher's Hospital, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the outpatient and inpatient treatment of severe physically disabling diseases and general maintenance and operation of the hospital. Payment of this appropriation shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments.
- (b) The sum of \$106,000 is hereby appropriated to St. Christopher's Hospital, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the handicapped children's clinic at the hospital. Payment of this appropriation shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments.
- Section 2. St. Christopher's Hospital shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.
- Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-25A

AN ACT

SB 1454

Making an appropriation to the Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania for the general maintenance and operation of the University of Pennsylvania Museum.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$185,000 is hereby appropriated to the Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the general maintenance of the University of Pennsylvania Museum and the purchase of such apparatus and equipment as the trustees may deem necessary for the best interest of the University of Pennsylvania Museum.

Section 2. Payments to the University of Pennsylvania Museum on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Executive Director of the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission.

Section 3. The Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission shall prescribe.

Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-26A

AN ACT

SB 1455

Making an appropriation to the Philadelphia University of the Arts, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$917,000 is hereby appropriated to the Philadelphia University of the Arts, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction and student aid. The Philadelphia University of the Arts consists of the institutions formerly known as the Philadelphia Colleges of the Arts and the Philadelphia College of Performing Arts.
- Section 2. Payments to the Philadelphia University of the Arts on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Education in equal quarterly payments.
- Section 3. The Philadelphia University of the Arts shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The Philadelphia University of the Arts shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statement in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. The sum of \$917,000 is hereby appropriated to the Philadelphia University of the Arts, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction and student aid. * * *

This item is approved in the sum of \$841,000.

The amount approved for this institution provides a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88.

No. 1988-27A

AN ACT

SB 1456

Making an appropriation to the Philadelphia College of Textiles and Science.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$534,000 is hereby appropriated to the Philadelphia College of Textiles and Science for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction and student aid.
- Section 2. Payments to the Philadelphia College of Textiles and Science on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Education in equal quarterly payments.
- Section 3. The Philadelphia College of Textiles and Science shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The Philadelphia College of Textiles and Science shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. The sum of \$534,000 is hereby appropriated to the Philadelphia College of Textiles and Science for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction and student aid.

This item is approved in the sum of \$522,000.

The amount approved for this institution provides a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88.

No. 1988-28A

AN ACT

SB 1457

Making an appropriation to the Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$1,118,000 is hereby appropriated to the Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction in the Doctor of Podiatric Medicine program.
- Section 2. Payments to the Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Secretary of Education on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.
- Section 3. The Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. The sum of \$1,118,000 is hereby appropriated to the Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction in the Doctor of Podiatric Medicine program.

This item is approved in the sum of \$1,093,000.

The amount approved for this institution provides a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88, after the removal of expenditures which were intended to occur one time.

No. 1988-29A

AN ACT

SB 1458

Making an appropriation to the Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$5,364,000 is hereby appropriated to the Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction in the Doctor of Osteopathy program.
- Section 2. Payments to the Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Secretary of Education on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.
- Section 3. The Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. The sum of \$5,364,000 is hereby appropriated to the Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction in the Doctor of Osteopathy program.

This item is approved in the sum of \$5,240,000.

The amount approved for this institution provides a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88.

No. 1988-30A

AN ACT

SB 1459

Making appropriations to the Trustees of the Berean Training and Industrial School at Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. (a) The sum of \$927,000 is hereby appropriated to the Trustees of the Berean Training and Industrial School at Philadelphia for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for operation and maintenance of the school.
- (b) The sum of \$102,000 is hereby appropriated to the Trustees of the Berean Training and Industrial School, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for payment of debt services to the Commonwealth.
- Section 2. Payments to the Berean Training and Industrial School on account of the appropriation in section 1(a) shall be made by the Secretary of Education in equal quarterly payments.
- Section 3. The Berean Training and Industrial School shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-31A

AN ACT

SB 1460

Making an appropriation to the Academy of Natural Sciences.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$341,000 is hereby appropriated to the Academy of Natural Sciences, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the purpose of maintenance of the academy.

Section 2. Payments to the Academy of Natural Sciences on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Executive Director of the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission.

Section 3. The Academy of Natural Sciences shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission shall prescribe.

Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-32A

AN ACT

SB 1461

2150

Making appropriations to the Hahnemann University, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. (a) The sum of \$4,984,000 is hereby appropriated to the Hahnemann University, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction in the Doctor of Medicine program.
- (b) The sum of \$515,000 is hereby appropriated to the Hahnemann University, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the general maintenance of the Hahnemann University, including the Allied Health, Professions and Graduate School of the Hahnemann University, and student aid.
- Section 2. Payments to the Hahnemann University on account of the appropriations provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Secretary of Education on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.
- Section 3. The Hahnemann University shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The Hahnemann University shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

(a) The sum of \$4,984,000 is hereby appropriated to the Section 1. Hahnemann University, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction in the Doctor of Medicine program.

This item is approved in the sum of \$4,869,000.

(b) The sum of \$515,000 is hereby appropriated to the Hahnemann University, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the general maintenance of the Hahnemann University, including the Allied Health, Professions and Graduate School of the Hahnemann University, and student aid.

This item is approved in the sum of \$503,000.

The amounts approved for this institution provide a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88, after the removal of expenditures which were intended to occur one time.

No. 1988-33A

AN ACT

SB 1462

Making an appropriation to the Museum of the Philadelphia Civic Center for maintenance and the purchase of apparatus, supplies and equipment.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$185,000 is hereby appropriated to the Museum of the Philadelphia Civic Center, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for maintenance and the purchase of apparatus, supplies and equipment.

Section 2. Payments to the Museum of the Philadelphia Civic Center on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Executive Director of the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission.

Section 3. The Museum of the Philadelphia Civic Center shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission shall prescribe.

Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-34A

AN ACT

SB 1463

Making an appropriation to the Afro-American Historical and Cultural Museum for operating expenses.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$164,000 is hereby appropriated to the Afro-American Historical and Cultural Museum, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for operating expenses, including maintenance and the purchase of apparatus, supplies and equipment.

Section 2. Payments to the Afro-American Historical and Cultural Museum on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Executive Director of the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission.

Section 3. The Afro-American Historical and Cultural Museum shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission shall prescribe.

Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-35A

AN ACT

SB 1464

Making appropriations to The Medical College of Pennsylvania, East Falls, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$2,949,000 is hereby appropriated to The Medical College of Pennsylvania located in East Falls, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction in the Doctor of Medicine program.
- Section 2. The sum of \$936,000 is hereby appropriated to The Medical College of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the general maintenance of The Medical College of Pennsylvania, including the School of Allied Health, and student aid.
- Section 3. Payments to The Medical College of Pennsylvania on account of the appropriations provided in sections 1 and 2 shall be made quarterly by the Secretary of Education on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.
- Section 4. The Medical College of Pennsylvania shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 5. The Medical College of Pennsylvania shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."

Section 6. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. The sum of \$2,949,000 is hereby appropriated to The Medical College of Pennsylvania located in East Falls, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction in the Doctor of Medicine program.

This item is approved in the sum of \$2,881,000.

Section 2. The sum of \$936,000 is hereby appropriated to The Medical College of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the general maintenance of The Medical College of Pennsylvania, including the School of Allied Health, and student aid.

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-35A 2155

This item is approved in the sum of \$915,000.

The amounts approved for this institution provide a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88.

No. 1988-36A

AN ACT

SB 1465

Making an appropriation to the Pennsylvania College of Optometry, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$1,589,000 is hereby appropriated to the Pennsylvania College of Optometry, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction.
- Section 2. Payments to the Pennsylvania College of Optometry on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Secretary of Education on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.
- Section 3. The Pennsylvania College of Optometry shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The Pennsylvania College of Optometry shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. The sum of \$1,589,000 is hereby appropriated to the Pennsylvania College of Optometry, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction.

This item is approved in the sum of \$1,553,000.

The amount approved for this institution provides a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88.

No. 1988-37A

AN ACT

SB 1466

Making an appropriation to the Fox Chase Institute for Cancer Research, Philadelphia, for the operation and maintenance of the cancer research program.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$725,000 is hereby appropriated to the Fox Chase Institute for Cancer Research, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the operation and maintenance of the cancer research program. Payment of this appropriation shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments.
- Section 2. The Fox Chase Institute for Cancer Research shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.
- Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. The sum of \$725,000 is hereby appropriated to the Fox Chase Institute for Cancer Research, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the operation and maintenance of the cancer research program. ***

This item is approved in the sum of \$674,000.

This is the amount contained in my recommended budget.

No. 1988-38A

AN ACT

SB 1467

Making appropriations to the Wistar Institute-Research, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. (a) The sum of \$239,000 is hereby appropriated to the Wistar Institute-Research, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the operation and maintenance of the institute. Payment of this appropriation shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments.
- (b) The sum of \$103,000 is hereby appropriated to the Wistar Institute-Research, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for research on acquired immune deficiency syndrome.
- Section 2. The Wistar Institute shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.
- Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-39A

AN ACT

SB 1468

Making an appropriation to the Home for Crippled Children, Pittsburgh.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$775,000 is hereby appropriated to the Home for Crippled Children, Pittsburgh, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, in accordance with procedures established by the Secretary of Health. Payment of this appropriation shall be made quarterly by the Secretary of Health.
- Section 2. The Home for Crippled Children shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.
- Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-40A

AN ACT

SB 1469

Making an appropriation to the Trustees of the University of Pittsburgh for the Western Psychiatric Institute and Clinic.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$7,407,000 is hereby appropriated to the Trustees of the University of Pittsburgh for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the general maintenance and operation of the Western Psychiatric Institute and Clinic by the University of Pittsburgh and the purchase of such apparatus and equipment as the trustees may deem necessary for the best interest of the purposes of the institute and clinic, which purposes shall include the teaching of personnel for the staffs of the various mental institutions of the Commonwealth and the conduct of research into the treatment, prevention and cause of the various types of nervous disorders and mental diseases in compliance with the laws providing for the lease of the Western Psychiatric Institute and Clinic to the University of Pittsburgh. In addition to the above amount, all income and all moneys collected at the institute and paid into the General Fund of the State Treasury under existing laws are hereby appropriated out of the General Fund to the institute for the same purposes, the institute to receive from such appropriation the exact amount which was collected at said institute during the said fiscal period.

Section 2. Payments to the institute on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Public Welfare in equal quarterly payments.

Section 3. The Trustees of the University of Pittsburgh shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Public Welfare shall prescribe.

Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-41A

AN ACT

SB 1470

Making an appropriation to the Trustees of the Buhl Science Center.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$185,000 is hereby appropriated to the Trustees of the Buhl Science Center, Pittsburgh, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the general operation of the planetarium and institute.
- Section 2. Payments to the Buhl Science Center on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Executive Director of the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission.
- Section 3. The Trustees of the Buhl Science Center shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission shall prescribe.
- Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-42A

AN ACT

SB 1471

Making an appropriation to the Pittsburgh Cleft Palate.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$56,000 is hereby appropriated to the Pittsburgh Cleft Palate for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for outpatient-inpatient treatment. Payment of this appropriation shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments.

Section 2. Pittsburgh Cleft Palate shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.

Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-43A

AN ACT

SB 1472

Making an appropriation to the Carnegie Museum of Natural History for maintenance and the purchase of apparatus, supplies and equipment.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$185,000 is hereby appropriated to the Carnegie Museum of Natural History, Pittsburgh, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for maintenance and the purchase of apparatus, supplies and equipment.
- Section 2. Payments to the Carnegie Museum of Natural History on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Executive Director of the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission.
- Section 3. The Carnegie Museum of Natural History shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission shall prescribe.

Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-44A

AN ACT

SB 1473

Making an appropriation to St. Francis Hospital, Pittsburgh.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$133,000 is hereby appropriated to St. Francis Hospital, Pittsburgh, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for cardiovascular studies. Payment of this appropriation shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments.
- Section 2. St. Francis Hospital shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.
- Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-45A

AN ACT

SB 1474

Making an appropriation to the Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture at Doylestown.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$405,000 is hereby appropriated to the Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture at Doylestown for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction and student aid.
- Section 2. Payments to the Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Education in equal quarterly payments.
- Section 3. The Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."

Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. The sum of \$405,000 is hereby appropriated to the Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture at Doylestown for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction and student aid.

This item is approved in the sum of \$396,000.

The amount approved for this institution provides a 5.5% increase over the amount provided in fiscal year 1987-88, after the removal of expenditures which were intended to occur one time.

No. 1988-46A

AN ACT

SB 1475

Making appropriations to the Downingtown Industrial and Agricultural School, Downingtown.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$906,000 is hereby appropriated to the Downingtown Industrial and Agricultural School, Downingtown, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for operation and maintenance of the school.
- Section 2. The sum of \$81,000 is hereby appropriated to the Downingtown Industrial and Agricultural School for payment of debts incurred prior to July 1, 1984.
- Section 3. The sum of \$54,000 is hereby appropriated to the Downingtown Industrial and Agricultural School for special projects.
- Payments to the Downingtown Industrial and Agricultural School on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Education in equal quarterly payments.
- The Downingtown Industrial and Agricultural School shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, which-Section 6. ever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

ROBERT P. CASEY

LAWS OF PENNSYLVANIA

No. 1988-47A

AN ACT

SB 1476

Making an appropriation to the Everhart Museum in Scranton.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$34,000 is hereby appropriated to the Everhart Museum in Scranton for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989.
- Section 2. Payments to the Everhart Museum on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Executive Director of the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission.
- Section 3. The Everhart Museum shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission shall prescribe.
- Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-48A

AN ACT

SB 1477

Making an appropriation to the Johnson Technical Institute of Scranton.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$195,000 is hereby appropriated to the Johnson Technical Institute of Scranton for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for operation and maintenance of the school.
- Section 2. Payments to the Johnson Technical Institute on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Education in equal quarterly payments.
- Section 3. The Johnson Technical Institute shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-49A

AN ACT

SB 1478

Making an appropriation to the Burn Foundation of Greater Delaware Valley.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$368,000 is hereby appropriated to the Burn Foundation of Greater Delaware Valley for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for outpatient and inpatient treatment. Payment of this appropriation shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments.

Section 2. The Burn Foundation of Greater Delaware Valley shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.

Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988, except as to the following:

Section 1. The sum of \$368,000 is hereby appropriated to the Burn Foundation of Greater Delaware Valley for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for outpatient and inpatient treatment. * * *

This item is approved in the sum of \$250,000.

This is the amount contained in my recommended budget.

No. 1988-50A

AN ACT

SB 1479

Making an appropriation to the Williamson Free School of Mechanical Trades in Delaware County.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$72,000 is hereby appropriated to the Williamson Free School of Mechanical Trades in Delaware County for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for operation and maintenance of the school.

Section 2. Payments to the Williamson Free School of Mechanical Trades on account of the appropriation in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Education in equal quarterly payments.

Section 3. The Williamson Free School of Mechanical Trades shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.

Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-51A

AN ACT

SB 1480

Making an appropriation to the Central Penn Oncology Group.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$144,000 is hereby appropriated to the Central Penn Oncology Group for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989. Payment of this appropriation shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments.

Section 2. The Central Penn Oncology Group shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.

Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-52A

AN ACT

SB 1481

Making an appropriation to the Arsenal Family and Children's Center.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$139,000 is hereby appropriated to the Arsenal Family and Children's Center for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989.

Section 2. Payments to the Arsenal Family and Children's Center on account of the appropriation in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Public Welfare in equal quarterly payments.

Section 3. The Arsenal Family and Children's Center shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Public Welfare shall prescribe.

Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-53A

AN ACT

SB 1482

Making an appropriation to the Lancaster Cleft Palate.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$56,000 is hereby appropriated to the Lancaster Cleft Palate for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for outpatient-inpatient treatment. Payment of this appropriation shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments.

Section 2. Lancaster Cleft Palate shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.

Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-54A

AN ACT

SB 1483

Making an appropriation to the Beacon Lodge Camp.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$77,000 is hereby appropriated to the Beacon Lodge Camp for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for services to the blind.

Section 2. Payments to the Beacon Lodge Camp on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Public Welfare in equal quarterly payments.

Beacon Lodge Camp shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Public Welfare shall prescribe.

Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 13th day of July, A. D. 1988.

ROBERT P. CASEY

No. 1988-55A

AN ACT

SB 1437

To provide additional appropriations from the General Fund for the expenses of the Executive, Legislative and Judicial Departments of the Commonwealth, the public debt and for the public schools for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988; to provide additional appropriations from the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund and the Energy Conservation and Assistance Fund to the Executive Department; to provide for the additional appropriation of Federal funds to the Executive and Judicial Departments of the Commonwealth for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 102. Definitions.

Section 103. Abbreviations.

Section 104. State appropriations.

Section 105. Federal augmentation appropriations.

Section 106. Job Training Partnership Act appropriations.

Section 107. Block grants.

PART II. GENERAL FUND AND FEDERAL APPROPRIATIONS FOR 1988-1989

SUBPART A. EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT

C 4:	201	O
Section	ZUI.	Governor.

Section 202. Executive Offices.

Section 203. Lieutenant Governor.

Section 204. Auditor General.

Section 205. Treasury Department.

Section 206. Department of Aging.

Section 207. Department of Agriculture.

Section 208. Department of Commerce.

Section 209. Department of Community Affairs.

Section 210. Department of Corrections.

Section 211. Department of Education.

Section 212. Department of Environmental Resources.

Section 213. Department of General Services.

Section 214. Department of Health.

Section 215. Department of Labor and Industry.

Section 216. Department of Military Affairs.

Section 217. Department of Public Welfare.

Section 218. Department of Revenue.

Section 219. Department of State.

Section 220. Department of Transportation.

Section 221. State System of Higher Education.

Section 222. Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency.

Section 223. Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission.

Section 224. Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency.

Section 225. Pennsylvania Securities Commission.

Section 226. Pennsylvania Crime Commission.

Section 227. State Ethics Commission.

Section 228. Additional allocation of funds by Governor.

Section 229. Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency.

Section 230. State Employees' Retirement Board.

SUBPART B. LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT

Section 251. Senate.

Section 252. House of Representatives.

Section 253. Legislative Reference Bureau.

Section 254. Joint State Government Commission.

Section 255. Capitol Preservation Committee.

Section 256. Health Care Cost Containment Council.

Section 257. Center for Rural Pennsylvania.

SUBPART C. JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT

Section 281. Supreme Court.

Section 282. Commonwealth Court.

Section 283. Courts of common pleas.

Section 284. Community courts - district justices.

Section 285. County court administration cost reimbursement.

PART III. ENERGY CONSERVATION AND ASSISTANCE FUND

Section 301. Executive Offices.

PART IV. PENNSYLVANIA ECONOMIC REVITALIZATION FUND

Section 401. Department of Commerce.

Section 402. Department of Community Affairs.

Section 403. Department of Environmental Resources.

PART V

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES OPERATING FUND

Section 501. Department of Health.

PART VI MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- Section 601. Prior laws unaffected.
- Section 602. Compliance with other law before funds available.
- Section 603. Contracts prerequisite to encumbering or committing funds.
- Section 604. Minority business set-asides.
- Section 605. Appropriation of funds from miscellaneous sources.
- Section 606. Lapsing of unused funds.
- Section 607. Construction with prior appropriation acts.
- Section 608. Deduction of expended appropriations under prior law.
- Section 609. Partial repeals.

PART VII. EFFECTIVE DATE

Section 701. Effective date.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

PART I GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 101. Short title.—This act shall be known and may be cited as the First Supplemental Appropriation Act to the General Appropriation Act of 1988.

Section 102. Definitions.—The following words and phrases when used in this act shall have the meanings given to them in this section unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

"Employees." Includes all directors, superintendents, bureau or division chiefs, assistant directors, assistant superintendents, assistant chiefs, experts, scientists, engineers, surveyors, draftsmen, accountants, secretaries, auditors, inspectors, examiners, analysts, statisticians, marshals, clerks, stenographers, bookkeepers, messengers and other assistants in any department, board or commission.

"Expenses" and "maintenance." Includes all printing, binding and stationery, food and forage, materials and supplies, traveling expenses, training, motor vehicle supplies and repairs, freight, express and cartage, postage, telephones and telegraph rentals and toll charges, newspaper advertising and notices, public advertising by or through any medium, fuel, light, heat, power and water, minor construction and renovation, repairs or reconstruction of equipment, buildings and facilities, rent of real estate and equipment, premiums on workmen's compensation, insurance premiums on policies of liability insurance, insurance premiums on medical payment insurance and surety bonds for volunteer workers, premiums on employee group life insurance and employee and retired employee group hospital and medical insurance, payment of Commonwealth share of Social Security taxes and unemployment compensation costs for State employees, the purchase of replacement or additional equipment and machinery and all other incidental costs

and expenses, including payment to the Department of General Services of mileage and other charges for the use of automobiles and rental payments for permanently assigned automobiles and of expenses or costs of services incurred through the Purchasing Fund. The term "expenses" also shall include the medical costs for the treatment of inmates of State institutions when the inmate must be transferred to an outside hospital: Provided, That in no case shall the State institution pay more for patient care than that provided under the State medical assistance program.

Section 103. Abbreviations.—The following abbreviations when used in this act shall have the meanings given to them in this section unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

"ADAMHSBG." Alcohol and Drug Abuse and Mental Health Services Block Grant.

"AFDC." Aid to Families with Dependent Children.

"ARC." Appalachian Regional Commission.

"BG." Block grant.

"BVS." Blind and Visual Services.

"CSBG." Community Services Block Grant.

"DOE." Department of Energy.

"ECIA." Education Consolidation and Improvement Act.

"ECIBG." Education Consolidation and Improvement Block Grant.

"EDA." Economic Development Administration.

"EEOC." Equal Employment Opportunity Commission.

"EPA." Environmental Protection Agency.

"EPCA." Energy Policy and Conservation Act.

"ESEA." Elementary and Secondary Education Act.

"FEMA." Federal Emergency Management Agency.

"FUTA." Federal Unemployment Tax Act.

"GED." General Education Development.

"HUD." Department of Housing and Urban Development.

"JTPA." Job Training Partnership Act.

"LIHEABG." Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Block Grant.

"LSCA." Library Services Construction Act.

"LWCF." Land and Water Conservation Fund.

"MCHSBG." Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant.

"MH/MR." Mental Health/Mental Retardation Services.

"NCHS." National Center for Health Statistics.

"NPDES." National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System.

"NSF." National Science Foundation.

"PAFE." Pennsylvania Agricultural Foods Exposition.

"PEP." Pennsylvania Employment Program.

"PHHSBG." Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant.

"PHRC." Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission.

"SCDBG." Small Communities Development Block Grant.

"SDA." Service Delivery Area.

"SSA." Social Security Act.

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-55A 2179

- "SSBG." Social Services Block Grant.
- "VA." Veterans' Administration.
- "YDC." Youth Development Center.

Section 104. State appropriations.—(a) General Fund.—The following sums set forth in this act, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated from the General Fund to the several hereinafter named agencies of the Executive, Legislative and Judicial Departments of the Commonwealth for the payment of salaries, wages or other compensation and travel expenses of the duly elected or appointed officers and employees of the Commonwealth, for payment of fees for contractual services rendered, for the purchase or rental of goods and services, printing, public advertising by or through any medium, equipment, land and buildings and for payment of any other expenses, as provided by law or by this act, necessary for the proper conduct of the duties, functions and activities and for the purposes hereinafter set forth for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.

- (b) Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund.—The following sums set forth in this act, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated from the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund to the several hereinafter named agencies of the Executive Department of the Commonwealth for the payment of fees for contractual services rendered, for the purchase or rental of goods and services and for payment of any other expenses, as provided by law or by this act, necessary for the proper conduct of the duties, functions and activities and for the purposes hereinafter set forth for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.
- (c) Energy Conservation and Assistance Fund.—The following sums set forth in this act, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated from the Energy Conservation and Assistance Fund to the several hereinafter named agencies of the Executive Department of the Commonwealth for the payment of fees for contractual services rendered, for the purchase or rental of goods and services and for the payment of any other expenses, as provided by law or by this act, necessary for the proper conduct of the duties, functions and activities and for the purposes hereinafter set forth for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.

Section 105. Federal augmentation appropriations.—The following Federal augmentation appropriations set forth in this act, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated from the Federal augmentation funds to the several hereinafter named agencies of the Executive and Judicial Departments of the Commonwealth for the payment of the expenses of implementing and carrying out the programs stated herein for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988, and for the payment of bills incurred and remaining unpaid at the close of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1988.

Unless otherwise stated, the appropriations include any carryovers from the prior fiscal year.

Section 106. Job Training Partnership Act appropriations.—The following sums as set forth in this act, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated from the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA) funds to the several hereinafter named agencies of the Executive Department of the Commonwealth for the payment of the expenses of implementing and carrying out the program stated herein for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988.

- Section 107. Block grants.—(a) Appropriation.—The following sums set forth in this act, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated from the block grant (BG) funds to the several hereinafter named agencies of the Executive Department of the Commonwealth for the purposes, and under the restrictions, for which the funds are provided for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988.
- (b) Small Communities Development Block Grant.—The Small Communities Development Block Grant (SCDBG) is to assist small cities and communities that have a high concentration of impoverished citizens and substandard housing to expand their low and moderate income housing opportunities and to meet community development needs.
- (c) Community Services Block Grant.—The Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) is to provide a range of services and activities having a measurable and potentially major impact on the causes of poverty in the community or those areas of the community where poverty is a particularly acute problem. In addition, new focus may be placed on the unemployed, both old and new. Local agencies may lower their eligibility requirements for recipients to three months to allow greater flexibility to assure proper consideration of each recipient.
- (d) Education Consolidation and Improvement Block Grant.—The Education Consolidation and Improvement Block Grant (ECIBG) will be used for the administration and provision of education programs in accordance with the requirements of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981.
- (e) Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant.—The Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant (PHHSBG) is for the provision of preventive health and other health services related to emergency medical comprehensive public health, hypertension, fluoridation, health education, risk reduction, home health, rape crisis and rodent control.
- (f) Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant.—The Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant (MCHSBG) is to assure mothers and children access to quality maternal and child health services, to reduce infant mortality and the incidence of preventable disease and handicapping conditions among children, to provide rehabilitative services for blind and disabled individuals under the age of 16 receiving Supplemental Security Income benefits and to provide medical services for children with crippling conditions.
- (g) Alcohol and Drug Abuse and Mental Health Services Block Grant.— The Alcohol and Drug Abuse and Mental Health Services Block Grant

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-55A 2181

(ADAMHSBG) will be used for the administration and provision of drug and alcohol abuse services and community mental health services in accordance with the requirements of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981.

- (h) Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Block Grant.—The Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Block Grant (LIHEABG) is to help lessen the impact of the high cost of energy on low-income families and individuals.
- (i) Social Services Block Grant.—The Social Services Block Grant (SSBG) is for the provision of social services to eligible persons.

PART II GENERAL FUND AND FEDERAL APPROPRIATIONS FOR 1988-1989

SUBPART A EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT

Section 201. Governor.—The following

amounts are appropriated to the Governor:

For the Office of the Governor: including the maintenance of the Governor's Home, the expense of entertainment of official guests and members of the General Assembly and the Judiciary, participation in the Governor's Conference, the expenses of the Executive Board, and the payment of traveling expenses of persons other than employees of the Commonwealth appointed by the Governor to represent or otherwise serve the Commonwealth.

State appropriation......

Section 202. Executive Offices.—The following amounts are appropriated to the Executive Offices:

For the Office of Administration.

State appropriation.....

For the Office of the Budget.

State appropriation.....

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated

essary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for administration:

(1) "EEOC - Special Project Grant" - To undertake, identify and eliminate discrimination in employment due to race, color, religion, sex, ancestry or national origin in hiring, recruitment, placement, promotion, Federal State

5.540,000

Federal

State

4,070,000

21,169,000

referral, transfer, layoff, discharge and other employment practices.		
Federal appropriation	950,000	
Energy Centers.		
Federal appropriation For the Crime Victim's Compensation Board.	466,000	
		555,000
State appropriation For a program for residential services for		333,000
psychiatrically impaired substance abusers		
who have been referred by the criminal		
justice system in Southeastern Pennsylvania.		
State appropriation		300,000
For the Office of General Counsel.		500,000
State appropriation		1,456,000
Section 203. Lieutenant Governor.—The		.,,
following amounts are appropriated to the		
Lieutenant Governor:	Federal	State
For the Office of the Lieutenant Governor,		
including payment of expenses of the resi-		
dence at the Edward Martin Military Reser-		
vation.		
State appropriation		583,000
Section 204. Auditor General.—The fol-		
lowing amounts are appropriated to the		
Auditor General:	Federal	State
For transfer to the Supplemental State		
Assistance Fund for Municipal Pension		
System State Aid.		2 575 000
State appropriation		3,575,000
Section 205. Treasury Department.—		
The following amounts are appropriated to the Treasury Department:	Federal	State
For general obligation debt service.	rederai	State
State appropriation		361,191,000
Diate appropriation		551,171,000

Section 206. Department of Aging.—		
The following amounts are appropriated to	-	C
the Department of Aging:	Federal	State
For transitional care. State appropriation		1,500,000
For family care-giver support.		1,500,000
State appropriation		1,500,000
Section 207. Department of Agricul-		2,500,000
ture.—The following amounts are appropri-		
ated to the Department of Agriculture:	Federal	State
The following Federal augmentation		
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-		
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated		
to supplement the sum appropriated from		
Commonwealth revenues for general govern-		
ment operations:		
(1) "Pennsylvania Plant Pest Detection		
System" - To provide timely plant pest occur-		
rence information to growers and to protect		
the consumer from plant losses.	44.000	
Federal appropriation	44,000	
(2) "State Administrative Expenses - Donated Foods" - To provide for the ade-		
quate and proper analysis, evaluation and		
monitoring of donated food processing con-		
tracts. To provide funds for justified		
expenses incurred by the State food distribu-		
tion advisory council.		
Federal appropriation	100,000	
(3) "Pesticide Enforcement, Certifica-	•	
tion, Training and Control Program" - For		
implementation of the Pennsylvania Pesti-	•	
cide Control Act of 1973, including the train-		
ing, testing and certification of pesticide		
applications.		
Federal appropriation	228,000	
For the diagnosing of diseases of livestock		
other than poultry.		275 000
State appropriation		275,000
For diagnostic contracts with poultry laboratories.		
State appropriation		275,000
For a diagnostic and field investigation		2,3,000
program of livestock and poultry diseases.		
State appropriation		210,000
1 1 A		-,

For the development of a poultry disease	
surveillance program.	150 000
State appropriation	158,000
For research into the causes and treatment	
of animal diseases, epidemiology and food	
animal health economics and the causes and	
solution to pest and weed problems. No	
funds from this appropriation shall be used	
for marketing research or promotional activ-	
ities.	
State appropriation	2,500,000
For the program of vaccination for brucel-	
losis.	
State appropriation	150,000
For research into the causes and treatment	
of Johne's Disease.	
State appropriation	121,000
For agricultural promotion, excluding	
urban farm market promotion.	
State appropriation	400,000
For payment of compensation to owners of	,
animals destroyed in disease eradication	
program.	
State appropriation	368,000
For payments to county fairs.	
State appropriation	3,400,000
For development and operation of an open	-,,
livestock show, including cattle, swine, sheep	
and horses.	
State appropriation	140,000
For planning and staging of an open dairy	2.0,000
show.	
State appropriation	83,000
For promotion and holding of annual	03,000
local, regional and State 4-H Clubs and	
Future Farmers of America dairy shows.	
State appropriation	33,000
The department may make allocations of	33,000
the above three appropriations as it deems	
appropriate to an association whose purposes	
are in accord with the purposes and intent of	
the appropriations, the funds so allocated to	
be used for the development and operation of	
livestock, dairy and Junior Dairy Shows in	
the Pennsylvania Farm Show Complex: Pro-	
vided, That the funds allocated by the depart-	
ment shall only be used for the specific items	
approved by the department in advance.	

For planning and staging ten annual 4-H Club Horse and Pony Shows and one Statewide show to be held in the fall as preliminary to the Keystone International Livestock Show.		
State appropriation For a comprehensive rabies control and	·	38,000
prevention program.		272 000
State appropriation		273,000
For mushroom promotion.		100 000
State appropriation		100,000
For programs to encourage development		
of future farmers.		20,000
State appropriation		30,000
Section 208. Department of Com-		
merce.—The following amounts are appro-	Todomol	Ctata
priated to the Department of Commerce:	Federal	State
For the general government operations of		
the Department of Commerce.		7 000 000
State appropriation		7,900,000
The following Federal augmentation		
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-		
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated		
to supplement the sum appropriated from		
Commonwealth revenues for general govern-		
ment operations:		
(1) "ARC - State Technical Assistance" -		
To conduct analysis and feasibility of ARC		
projects prior to their inception.	450.000	
Federal appropriation	450,000	
(2) "ARC - Economic Development		
Research and Training II" - To implement a		
program of research and training for the		
Research Training Center project.	550 000	
Federal appropriation	550,000	
(3) "EDA - Planning Assistance" - To		
undertake State economic planning activities.	192,000	
Federal appropriation	192,000	
(4) "Foreign Investment Guide" - To		
develop a foreign investment guide. Federal appropriation	200,000	
	200,000	
(5) "Industrial Property Inventory" - To prepare an inventory of industrial property.		
Federal appropriation	190,000	
(6) "Self-employment Alternatives" - To	190,000	
(o) Ben-employment Antendatives * 10		

develop a self-employment alternatives program.	
Federal appropriation	300,000
For international city projects.	300,000
State appropriation	100,000
For the purpose of marketing to attract	,
tourists and businesses to the Common-	
wealth.	
State appropriation	9,000,000
For tourist promotion assistance.	
State appropriation	6,500,000
For the Ben Franklin Partnership Fund to	
promote, stimulate and encourage basic and	
applied scientific research and development	
and scientific and technological education in	
Pennsylvania. Funds from this appropriation	
may also be used to encourage the start-up	
and continued operations of small businesses	
in the Commonwealth.	
State appropriation	31,500,000
For the Pennsylvania Minority Business	
Development Authority.	
State appropriation	2,000,000
For payment into the Pennsylvania Eco-	
nomic Revitalization Fund.	41 050 000
State appropriation	41,050,000
For community economic development	
projects State appropriation	1,410,000
For a Pennsylvania horticultural exposi-	1,410,000
tion.	
State appropriation	150,000
For hardwoods research and promotion.	130,000
State appropriation	500,000
Section 209. Department of Community	
Affairs.—The following amounts are appro-	
priated to the Department of Community	
Affairs:	Federal State
For general government operations of the	
Department of Community Affairs.	
State appropriation	8,540,000
The following Federal augmentation	
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-	
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated	
to supplement the sum appropriated from	
Commonwealth revenues for general govern-	
ment operations:	

"Police Management." (1) Federal appropriation..... 105,000 (2) "Single Room Occupancy/Section 8 Housing" - For a single room occupancy/ section 8 housing program. Federal appropriation..... 1,500,000 "Permanent Housing for Disabled Homeless" - For a program of permanent housing for disabled homeless. 1,500,000 Federal appropriation..... "Administrative Costs of Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) Projects" - For the costs of administering and maintaining LWCF projects in the State. Federal appropriation..... 50,000 The following SCDBG amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated for general government operations: (1) For administration of the SCDBG Program. 959,000

Federal appropriation..... For grants for housing and redevelopment assistance as authorized by the act of May 20. 1949 (P.L.1633, No.493), known as the Housing and Redevelopment Assistance Law. No more than 20% of the amount herein appropriated shall be allocated or granted to any one political subdivision. No funds from this appropriation shall be distributed to any organization or agency other than a municipal government or a certified redevelopment authority created by a municipal government or governments under the provisions of the act of May 24, 1945 (P.L.991, No.385), known as the Urban Redevelopment Law, unless specifically authorized by such government or redevelopment authority. In addition, any funds returned to the department from prior year continuing appropriations for housing and redevelopment assistance, including interest and refunds, shall be credited to the above appropriation. Twenty-five million dollars of this appropriation shall be used for economic development.

State appropriation.....

45,000,000

For community and economic develop-		
ment projects.		
State appropriation		10,818,000
For community public safety projects.		
State appropriation		2,109,000
Section 210. Department of Correc-		•
tions.—The following amounts are appropri-		
ated to the Department of Corrections:	Federal	State
For the State correctional institutions.	1 000103	State
State appropriation		262,285,000
The following Federal augmentation		202,203,000
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-		
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated		
to supplement the sum appropriated from		
Commonwealth revenues for the State cor-		
rectional institutions.		
(1) "Veterans Training" - For the train-		
ing of veterans employed in State correc-		
tional institutions.	100 000	
Federal appropriation	120,000	
(2) "Library Services" - For the purchase		
of low-reading-level books.		
Federal appropriation	58,000	
(3) "Community Service Center Train-		
ing" - For a community service center train-	•	
ing program.		
Federal appropriation	25,000	
(4) "Library Literacy" - For a library lit-		
eracy program.		
Federal appropriation	25,000	
Section 211. Department of Educa-		
tion.—The following amounts are appropri-		
ated to the Department of Education:	Federal	State
For general government operations of the		
Department of Education, including the		
development and implementation of State-		
wide testing. This appropriation includes the		
sum of \$150,000 for a research grant for		
Judaic and Near Eastern studies.		
State appropriation		16,083,000
The following Federal augmentation		
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-		
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated		
to supplement the sum appropriated from		
Commonwealth revenues for general govern-		
ment operations:		

SESSI	MO	OF	1988
DEGO	IOIA.	VI.	1700

(1) "Drug Abuse Education" - To develop a dissemination process for sub-	
stance abuse prevention education program-	
ming.	400.000
Federal appropriation(2) "Star Schools Program" - To estab-	400,000
lish a star schools program.	
Federal appropriation	1,469,000
(3) "AIDS Demonstration/Training" - To develop an AIDS demonstration and	
training program.	
Federal appropriation	12,000
(4) "Teacher Preparation/Enhance-	12,000
ment" - To provide for a teacher preparation	
and enhancement program.	
Federal appropriation	86,000
(5) "Student Voices Now and Then."	•
Federal appropriation	140,000
For the Scranton State School for the	
Deaf.	
State appropriation	3,566,000
For the Scotland School for Veterans'	
Children.	7.224.000
State appropriation	7,334,000
For the Thaddeus Stevens State School of	
Technology. State appropriation	3,785,000
For a conservatory leadership school.	3,783,000
State appropriation	30,000
For payment of the equalized subsidy for	20,000
basic education to school districts: Provided,	
That the Secretary of Education, with the	
approval of the Governor, may make pay-	
ments from this appropriation in advance of	
the due date prescribed by law to school dis-	
tricts which are financially handicapped	
whenever he shall deem it necessary to make	
such advance payments to enable the school	
districts to keep their public schools open, including funds for payments pursuant to	
section 2594 of the act of March 10, 1949	
(P.L.30, No.14), known as the Public School	
Code of 1949, and the employer's share of	
retirement contributions and Social Security	
taxes payable on such minimum salary	
amounts.	•
State appropriation	2,507,279,000

For a program to determine the impact of a school performance incentive program. No funds from this appropriation shall be spent until enabling legislation is enacted. State appropriation	5,000,000
State appropriation For payments on account of pupil trans-	26,000,000
portation. State appropriation For payments for early intervention -	208,650,000
handicapped children. State appropriation For the Commonwealth's share of a school annuitant's supplemental payment. No funds from this appropriation shall be expended until enabling legislation has been enacted.	8,258,000
State appropriation	8,669,000
For a comprehensive reading program. State appropriation For vocational student organizations.	300,000
State appropriation	250,000
For higher education - rural initiatives. State appropriation For a medical library and museum	1,245,000
State appropriation	100,000
State appropriation	1,375,000
State appropriation For payments to private residential rehabil-	14,100,000
itative institutions. State appropriation	500,000

For educational and institutional assis-	•	
tance projects.		
State appropriation		1,904,000
Section 212. Department of Environ-		
mental Resources.—The following amounts		
are appropriated to the Department of Envi-		
ronmental Resources:	Federal	State
The following Federal augmentation		
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-		
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated		
to supplement the sum appropriated from		
Commonwealth revenues for general govern-		
ment operations:		
(1) "Applicant Violation System" - To		
institute an applicant violator system.		
Federal appropriation	20,000	
The following Federal augmentation	20,000	
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-		
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated		
to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for the Office of		
Resources Management:		
(1) "Coastal Zone Management" - For		
support of the coastal zone management		
program.	1 000 000	
Federal appropriation	1,800,000	
For the Chesapeake Bay Pollution Abate-		
ment Program.		
State appropriation		2,617,000
The following Federal augmentation		
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-		
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated		
to supplement the sum appropriated from		
Commonwealth revenues for the Office of		
Protection:		
(1) "Water Pollution Control Grants" -		
For the conduct and administration of the		
Statewide water pollution control program		
plan.		
Federal appropriation	4,000,000	
(2) "Water Pollution Control" - For		
implementation of the NPDES Program.		
Federal appropriation	3,805,000	
(3) "Safe Drinking Water" - For support	•	
of the safe drinking water program.		
Fodoral appropriation	2 649 000	

(4) "Lake Wallenpaupack - Phase II" -		
For assistance to local agencies in implement-		
ing lake restoration procedures.		
Federal appropriation	595,000	
(5) "Lake Nockamixon - Phase II" - For		
assistance to local agencies in implementing		
lake restoration procedures.		
Federal appropriation	340,000	
(6) "Non-Point Source Program."		
Federal appropriation	1,148,000	
(7) "Leaking Storage Tank Trust Fund."	4 455 444	
Federal appropriation	1,575,000	
(8) "Permit Compliance System" - For		
development of a system to aid in permit		
compliance activities.	100.000	
Federal appropriation	100,000	
For the Pennsylvania Infrastructure		
Investment Authority (Pennvest).		15 000 000
State appropriation For flood control projects.		15,000,000
State appropriation		1,325,000
For floodplain renovations.		1,323,000
State appropriation		1,000,000
For environmental protection projects.		1,000,000
State appropriation		779,000
For sewage treatment plant operation		,
grants.		
State appropriation		22,000,000
For the Office of Protector General.		
State appropriation		500,000
For support of the Chesapeake Bay Com-		
mission.		
State appropriation		150,000
For small watershed projects.		
State appropriation		32,000
For payment to conservation districts.		
State appropriation		1,500,000
For the Anthracite Emergency Bond Fund.		
State appropriation		50,000
For review of school district asbestos		
removal plans.		200,000
State appropriation		200,000
For Marianna Borough cleanup. State appropriation		200,000
Section 213. Department of General Ser-		200,000
vices.—The following amounts are appropri-		
ated to the Department of General Services:	Federal	State

For general government operations of the Department of General Services. State appropriation..... 42,900,000 For the administration and operation of the Capitol Police. State appropriation..... 4,085,000 For utility costs, including implementation of third-party shared savings programs. State appropriation..... 9,300,000 For legal services costs incurred resulting from the construction of the Capitol addition. State appropriation..... 300,000 Section 214. Department of Health.— The following amounts are appropriated to the Department of Health: Federal State following Federal augmentation The amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for general government operations: (1) "Disease Control Immunization Program - Project Grants" - To enlist the aid of practicing physicians, official health agencies and volunteers in an immunization program for all susceptible persons in the community, particularly children under five years of age. Federal appropriation..... 463,000 For a worksite wellness program in north central Pennsylvania. State appropriation..... 125,000 For the Office of Quality Assurance. State appropriation..... 3.599,000 The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for the administration of the Quality Assurance Program: (1) "Medicare - Health Services Agency Certification" - Perform surveys and inspections to determine whether hospitals, home

health agencies, laboratories, clinics and other providers of health services meet requirements as set forth in section 1861 of the Social Security Act and certify those that qualify to the Secretary of Health and Human Services.

Federal appropriation.....

2,990,000

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for the operation of the State Laboratory:

(1) "Medicare - Health Services Agency Certification" - Perform surveys and inspections to determine whether hospitals, home health agencies, laboratories, clinics and other providers of health services meet requirements as set forth in section 1861 of the Social Security Act and certify those that qualify to the Secretary of Health and Human Services.

Federal appropriation.....

220,000

For the State Health Care Centers, including the district offices of the Department of Health.

State appropriation.....

For cancer institute activities in western Pennsylvania.

State appropriation.....

12,778,000

For cancer institute activities in eastern Pennsylvania.

State appropriation.....

500,000

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for maternal and

child health:

500,000

(1) "Genetic Screening and Education" -To improve access to genetic counseling for individuals most frequently underserved in the medical care system.

Federal appropriation.....

48,000

The following MCHSBG amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated for maternal and child health:

(1) For crippled children programs.

Federal appropriation.....

7,086,000

For emergency medical services.		
State appropriation		1,500,000
The following Federal augmentation		
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-		
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated		
to the Department of Health for anti-drug		
abuse activities:		
(1) "Anti-Drug Abuse - Substance Abuse		
Treatment." No less than 20% of this appro-		
priation shall be used for preventive pro-		
•		
grams.	11 440 000	
Federal appropriation	11,448,000	
For community preventive drug education		
programs.		
State appropriation		225,000
For health care services in northwestern		
Pennsylvania.		
State appropriation		195,000
For AIDS prevention and education. Of		
the amount appropriated herein, no less than		
\$1,000,000 shall be for grants to community-		
based organizations for AIDS education and		
prevention activities. No more than \$400,000		
of this appropriation shall be used for admin-		
istration by the Department of Health. The		
remaining appropriated funds shall be used		
for a public media campaign coordinated		
with community based organizations and		
prevention training for individuals whose		
employment places them at risk.		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
State appropriation		2,000,000
The following Federal augmentation		
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-		
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated		
to supplement the sum appropriated from		
Commonwealth revenues for AIDS preven-		
tion and education:		
(1) Prevention and education activities,		
including AIDS training for personnel who		
work with AIDS patients.		
Federal appropriation	7,300,000	
For summer camps for children with		
sickle-cell anemia.		
State appropriation		35,000
For operation of the Keystone State		,
Games.		
State appropriation		200,000
new abbrohimmaniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii		200,000

For a poison control center in western		
Pennsylvania to help strengthen and rein-		
force poison information, treatment, educa-		
tion and prevention and for other specialized		
health care programs for children in Pennsyl-		
vania.		

State appropriation..... For a poison control center in eastern Pennsylvania to help strengthen and reinforce poison information, treatment, education and prevention and for other specialized health care programs for children in Pennsylvania.

State appropriation.....

200,000

For the development and coordination of trauma prevention education programs and the promotion of the availability of trauma centers throughout this Commonwealth.

State appropriation.....

150,000

375,000

For Tourette Syndrome.

State appropriation..... Section 215. Department of Labor and 100,000

Industry.—The following amounts appropriated to the Department of Labor and Industry:

Federal State

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for general government operations:

(1) "National Occupational Information Coordinating Committee" - To develop and implement an occupational information system to ensure that needed labor market and occupational information is available.

356,000

Federal appropriation.....

For provision of rehabilitation and related services in the Harmarville area. This appropriation shall be in addition to any other State grants or funds received for such services.

State appropriation.....

For needs-based payments for dislocated workers and other services authorized by the act of July 13, 1987 (P.L.346, No.66), known 200,000

as the Dislocated Worker Training Assistance		
Act.		
State appropriation		2,500,000
For PennSERV.		_,,
State appropriation		500,000
For joint jobs initiatives.		
State appropriation		1,500,000
Section 216. Department of Military		, ,
Affairs.—The following sums are appropri-		
ated to the Department of Military Affairs:	Federal	State
The following Federal augmentation		
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-		
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated		
to supplement the sum appropriated from		
Commonwealth revenues for general govern-		
ment operations:		
(1) "National Guard - Maintenance		
Facilities and Training Sites" - To provide		
storage of equipment and utilities and service		
for support for National Guard units.		
Federal appropriation	900,000	
(2) "Employee Support - National		
Guard" - For the expenses of providing staff		
support for the National Guard.		
Federal appropriation	330,000	
(3) "Expansion of Telecommunications		
System at Fort Indiantown Gap."		
Federal appropriation	80,000	
For the operation and maintenance of the		
Hollidaysburg Veterans' Home.		
State appropriation		8,943,000
Section 217. Department of Public		
Welfare.—The following sums are appropri-	E. 3 . 3	04 - 4 -
ated to the Department of Public Welfare:	Federal	State
The following Federal augmentation		
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-		
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from		
Commonwealth revenues for general government operations:		
(1) "Medical Assistance - Program		
Administration' - For administrative		
expenses incurred for general government		
operations in support of the provision of		
medical assistance on behalf of eligible		
persons.		
	10 010 000	

(2) "Food Stamp Program - Administration" - For administrative expenses incurred	
for general government operations in relation	
to the food stamp program.	
Federal appropriation	2,564,000
(3) "Community Support Services.	
M.H."	
Federal appropriation	811,000
(4) "Work Saturation Project - Adminis-	
tration" - For administration of a program to	
integrate new programs with the existing	
Pennsylvania work registration program.	200 000
Federal appropriation	208,000
(5) "Homeless Mentally Ill - Administra-	
tion" - For administration of the homeless	
mentally ill program.	55.000
Federal appropriation	77,000
(6) "Vocational Improvement Program"	
- For a program providing intensive, suppor-	
tive vocational services to young mentally ill	
persons.	100 000
Federal appropriation	199,000
(7) "Monitoring Detainment of Juve-	
niles" - For a program to monitor compli-	
ance with Federal requirements on detain-	
ment of juveniles.	01 000
Federal appropriation	91,000
The following ADAMHSBG amounts, or	
as much thereof as may be necessary, are	
hereby specifically appropriated for general	
government operations: (1) For administration of the mental	
health services programs. Federal appropriation	134,000
The following Federal augmentation	134,000
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-	
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated	
to supplement the sum appropriated from	
Commonwealth revenues for the Office of	•
Information Systems:	
(1) "Medical Assistance - Information	
Systems" - For administrative expenses	
incurred by the Office of Information	
Systems in providing for medical assistance	
on behalf of eligible persons.	
Federal appropriation	13,806,000
i odorur appropriativit	12,000,000

(2) "Food Stamp Program" - For expenses incurred by the Office of Information Systems in providing an information system in relation to the food stamp program.

Federal appropriation.....

(3) "Child Support Enforcement" - For administrative expenses incurred by the Office of Information Systems to enforce the support obligations owed by absent parents to their children, locate absent parents, establish paternity and obtain child support.

Federal appropriation.....

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for Statewide operations relating to county administration:

(1) "Medical Assistance - Statewide Operations Related to County Administration" - For administrative expenses incurred in relation to the provision of Federal medical assistance services.

Federal appropriation.....

(2) "Maintenance Assistance - Statewide Operations Related to County Administration" - For administrative expenses incurred in the provision of Federal maintenance assistance programs.

Federal appropriation.....

(3) "Food Stamp Program - Statewide Operations Related to County Administration" - For administrative expenses incurred in relation to the food stamp program.

Federal appropriation.....

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for county assistance offices:

(1) "Medical Assistance - County Assistance Offices" - For administrative expenses incurred by county assistance offices in rela-

2,757,000

1,167,000

25,354,000

6,545,000

5,776,000

tion to the provision of Federal medical assistance services.		
Federal appropriation	21,987,000	
maintenance assistance programs. Federal appropriation	49,492,000	
offices in relation to the food stamp		
rogram. Federal appropriation The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated	39,637,000	
to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for program accountability: (1) "Medical Assistance - Program		
Accountability."		
Federal appropriation	493,000	
Federal appropriation	1,514,000	
Federal appropriation	44,689,000	
For services for the visually handicapped.	2,150,000	
State appropriation		5,503,000

provide vocational rehabilitation services to eligible visually handicapped persons.

Federal appropriation.....

6,578,000

For the provision of services to multihandicapped students in residential facilities in Philadelphia.

State appropriation..... For Youth Development Institutions and

Forestry Camps.

State appropriation.....

For the operation, maintenance and administration of the State medical and surgical hospitals.

State appropriation.....

For the State mental hospitals and restoration center and the care of patients of such hospitals and center. This appropriation includes funds for the costs associated with all activities related to the closing of the Philadelphia State Hospital. It is the intent of the General Assembly that institutional employees will not provide services to patients outside of the institutional setting except on a short-term demonstration basis in which case the services must be coordinated with the respective county mental health agency.

State appropriation.....

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for State mental hospitals and restoration center:

(1) "Food Nutrition Service - State Mental Hospitals" - For reimbursement for the cost of meals and milk provided to lowincome children under 21 years of age in State institutions.

Federal appropriation.....

The above Federal appropriations include funds associated with all activities related to the closing of the Philadelphia State Hospital. It is the intent of the General Assembly that institutional employees will not provide services to patients outside of the institutional setting except on a short-term demonstration basis in which case the services must

155,000

31,295,000

11,788,000

296,532,000

305,000

2202	Act 1988-55A	LAWS OF PENNSYLVANIA
mental ł	dinated with the respective counteralth agency.	ity
	ish assistance grants.	£29 400 000
The	State appropriation following Federal augmentation	
	s, or as much thereof as may be no	
	are hereby specifically appropriate	
	lement the sum appropriated from	
	nwealth revenues for medical ass	
	utpatient:	
	'Medical Assistance - Outpatient'	' _
	vision of outpatient and emergen	
services	to eligible persons, exclusive of se	er-
	ovided through capitation plans.	
	Federal appropriation	
	icreases in the amounts paid by t	
-	nent of Public Welfare for parti	
	zation, for independent clinic visit	
	e health agency skilled nursing, phy	
	rapist, occupational therapist as	
	herapist visits; and for home heal ome health aide visits.	ın
	state appropriation	2,709,000
	nedical assistance payments - inp	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	vices, exclusive of services provide	
	capitation plans.	
	State appropriation	462,000,000
For m	edical assistance - capitation plans	3 -
	ision of outpatient services and inp	
	spital services to eligible person	ns
	in an approved capitation plan.	
	tate appropriation	
	following Federal augmentation	
	, or as much thereof as may be ne	
	are hereby specifically appropriate ement the sum appropriated fro	
	nwealth revenues for medical assi	
	apitation plans:	
	Medical assistance - Capitation	on
	- For provision of outpatient ar	
	hospital services to eligible person	

facilities.

State appropriation..... 213,730,000

85,926,000

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for long-term care facilities:

(1) "Medical Assistance - Long-Term Care Facilities" - For provision of services to patients in long-term care facilities.

Federal appropriation.....

Any rule, regulation or policy for the State or Federal appropriations for the cash assistance, outpatient, inpatient, capitation, long-term care and Supplemental Grants to the Aged, Blind and Disabled programs adopted by the Secretary of Public Welfare during the fiscal period 1988-1989 which adds to the cost of any public assistance program shall be effective only from and after the date upon which it is approved as to the availability of funds by the Governor.

For a one-time long-term care disproportionate share allowance payable according to a formula established by the department to nongovernmental long-term care facilities in which medicaid funded patient days account for at least 90% of total patient days and payable only if in accordance with a medical assistance plan approved by the Federal Government.

State appropriation.....

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for long-term care disproportionate share allowance:

For a one-time long-term care disproportionate share allowance payable according to a formula established by the department to nongovernmental long-term care facilities in which medicaid funded patient days account for at least 90% of total patient days.

Federal appropriation.....

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated

483,779,000

1,000,000

1,130,000

to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for medical assistance - transportation:

(1) "Medical Assistance - Transportation" - To provide transportation to eligible medical assistance recipients to commute to appointed locations to receive required medical treatment.

Federal appropriation.....

It is the intent of the General Assembly that reimbursements for transportation services shall not exceed the amount of State and Federal funds appropriated by the General Assembly and that these funds shall be utilized as payment of last resort for trans-

For community mental health services, exclusive of capital improvements, which shall include grants to counties and county institution districts.

portation services for eligible recipients.

State appropriation.....

The following ADAMHSBG amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated for community mental health:

(1) For Community Mental Health Services.

Federal appropriation.....

For extraordinary costs to counties other than counties of the first class resulting from the closure of Pennhurst State Center.

State appropriation.....

For community-based services for the mentally retarded, exclusive of capital improvements, which shall include grants to counties and county institution districts for noninstitutional programs.

State appropriation.....

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for communitybased services for the mentally retarded:

(1) "Mental Retardation Offenders Program."

9,885,000

148,681,000

13,983,000

2,500,000

85,295,000

2205

20,000,000

Federal appropriation..... 54,000 For early intervention services. State appropriation..... 17,574,000 For community residential services for the mentally retarded. State appropriation..... 166,172,000 For residential services to the mentally retarded in the Lansdowne area. State appropriation..... 206,000 For payment to counties for children and youth programs and for the care of delinquent and dependent children. Reimbursement for children and youth services made pursuant to section 704.1 of the act of June 13, 1967 (P.L.31, No.21), known as the Public Welfare Code, shall not exceed the amount of State funds appropriated. State appropriation..... 135,712,000 The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for payments to counties for children and youth programs and child abuse and neglect prevention: (1) "Child Welfare Services" - To establish, extend and strengthen services provided by local public welfare programs for development of services which will prevent the neglect, abuse, exploitation or delinquency of children. Federal appropriation..... 14,400,000 For supplemental payments to counties for children and youth programs, including \$1,500,000 for family preservation programs which will provide intensive intervention services to families whose children are at risk of immediate out-of-home placement under the custody of a county children and youth agency. Reimbursement for children and vouth services made pursuant section 704.1 of the Public Welfare Code shall not exceed the amount of State funds appropriated.

State appropriation.....

For day-care services provided by Stateapproved facilities for children. This appropriation includes \$1,000,000 for model daycare programs to be undertaken in cooperation with the Department of Education.

State appropriation.....

31,785,000

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for day-care services:

(1) "Dependent Care Planning and Development."

Federal appropriation...... 421,000

(2) "Child Development Scholarship" - For certification of child day-care workers.

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for new directions:

(1) "Maintenance Assistance - New Directions."

(2) "Saturation Work Program - New Directions."

For rape crisis programs.

State appropriation.....

1,523,000

For the Human Services Development Fund. The total appropriation shall be allocated to counties as follows: 50% shall be allocated by per capita and 50% shall be allocated by poverty. Poverty shall be defined as the average number of Aid to Families with Dependent Children, General Assistance and State Blind Pension recipients in fiscal year 1986-1987 as a proportion of the Statewide average number of Aid to Families with Dependent Children, General Assistance and State Blind Pension recipients in this Commonwealth for fiscal year 1986-1987. No county shall receive a grant of less than \$50,000 in State and Federal dollars combined. Under no circumstances shall any county receive a grant in an amount which is less than it received in the immediately preceding fiscal year.

2207

The following Federal augmentation amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated to supplement the sum appropriated from Commonwealth revenues for the Human Services Development Fund:

(1) "Immigration Reform and Control"To provide public health assistance and educational services to qualified aliens.

Federal appropriation.....

The following SSBG amounts, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated for the Human Services Development Fund:

(1) "Social Services - Human Services Development Fund." The total appropriation shall be allocated to counties as follows: 50% shall be allocated by per capita and 50% shall be allocated by poverty. Poverty shall be defined as the average number of Aid to Families with Dependent Children, General Assistance and State Blind Pension recipients in fiscal year 1986-1987 as a proportion of the Statewide average number of Aid to Families with Dependent Children, General Assistance and State Blind Pension recipients in this Commonwealth for fiscal year 1986-1987. No county shall receive a grant of less than \$50,000 in State and Federal dollars combined. Under no circumstances shall any county receive a grant in an amount which is less than it received in the immediately preceding fiscal year.

Federal appropriation.....

For a teen suicide program in western Pennsylvania.

State appropriation.....

To assist an association of retarded citizens in cities of the first class.

State appropriation......
For health and human services projects.

State appropriation.....

The above Federal appropriations to the Department of Public Welfare include any prior earnings that may be received during fiscal year 1988-1989.

5,310,000

14,339,000

500,000

214,000

3,844,000

In addition to the amounts specifically appropriated herein to the Department of Public Welfare, all moneys appropriated from the Federal Government during any previous fiscal year which are expected to be received as reimbursements may be carried forward until June 30, 1989, to the extent that contracted obligations are carried forward. In addition, any reimbursements actually received to support such obligations may also be carried forward.

Section 218. Department of Revenue.—

Section 218. Department of Revenue.— The following amounts are appropriated to the Department of Revenue:

For general government operations of the Department of Revenue.

State appropriation......

Section 219. Department of State.—The following amounts are appropriated to the

Department of State:

For general government operations of the Department of State.

tion.—The following amounts are appropriated to the Department of Transportation:

For mass transit operations of the Department of Transportation, including urban, rural and intercity mass transportation.

State appropriation.....

For urban mass transportation assistance for grants to local transportation organizations to be used only for purchase of service projects, advertising and promotion programs. This appropriation includes sufficient funds to implement section 204(i) of the Pennsylvania Urban Mass Transportation Law.

State appropriation.....

For the coordination of civilian aviation patrol activities within this Commonwealth.

patrol activities within this Commonwealth.

State appropriation.....

Section 221. State System of Higher Education.—The following amounts are appropriated to the State System of Higher Education:

Federal State

71,771,000

Federal State

3,188,000

Federal State

.....

911,000

213,682,000

400,000

Federal State

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-55A 2209

For the State System of Higher Education,		
including the Chancellor's Office. No funds from this appropriation shall be used for the		
administration, operation or maintenance of		
the property known as Welkinweir.		
State appropriation		311,594,000
For the McKeever Center.		311,354,000
State appropriation		250,000
For deferred maintenance. As a condition		250,000
of accepting these funds, the State System of		
Higher Education shall provide matching		
funds equal to at least 50% of this appropri-		
ation.		
State appropriation		3,800,000
For library enhancement.		3,000,000
State appropriation		1,500,000
Section 222. Pennsylvania Higher Edu-		1,500,000
cation Assistance Agency.—The following		
amounts are appropriated to the Pennsyl-		
vania Higher Education Assistance Agency:	Federal	State
For the development and implementation	reactar	State
of a teacher loan forgiveness program. No		
funds from this appropriation shall be spent		
until enabling legislation is enacted.		
State appropriation		1,000,000
Section 223. Pennsylvania Historical and		1,000,000
Museum Commission.—The following		
amounts are appropriated to the Pennsyl-		
vania Historical and Museum Commission:	Federal	State
To the Pennsylvania Historical and		5.2.0
Museum Commission for general govern-		
ment operations of the Pennsylvania Histor-		
ical and Museum Commission. This appro-		
priation includes \$125,000 for the operation		
and restoration of the Flagship Niagara.		
State appropriation		11,126,000
To undertake major maintenance and		
repair needs at historic sites and museums		
administered by the Pennsylvania Historical		
and Museum Commission.		
State appropriation		825,000
For grants to museums - museum assis-		ŕ
tance.		
State appropriation		770,000
For museum assistance projects.		•
State appropriation		1,186,000

For arboretum assistance.		
State appropriation		400,000
For Governor Printz Park - Morton		110,100
Homestead.		
State appropriation		500,000
For humanities activities in Pennsylvania.		
State appropriation		100,000
Section 224. Pennsylvania Housing		
Finance Agency.—The following amounts		
are appropriated to the Pennsylvania		_
Housing Finance Agency:	Federal	State
For transfer to the Pennsylvania Housing		
Finance Agency for the Homeowner's Emergency Assistance Program.		
State appropriation		11 700 000
Section 225. Pennsylvania Securities		11,700,000
Commission.—The following amounts are		
appropriated to the Pennsylvania Securities		
Commission:	Federal	State
For general government operations of the	2 0 0 0 0 0 0	2000
Pennsylvania Securities Commission, includ-		
ing funds to implement an entrepreneur edu-		
cation program and a securities fraud aware-		
ness program.		
State appropriation		2,894,000
Section 226. Pennsylvania Crime Com-		
mission.—The following amounts are appro-		
priated to the Pennsylvania Crime Commission:	Federal	State
For general government operations of the	reuerai	State
Pennsylvania Crime Commission.		
State appropriation		2,497,000
The following Federal augmentation		2, 157,000
amounts, or as much thereof as may be nec-		
essary, are hereby specifically appropriated		
to supplement the sum appropriated from		
Commonwealth revenues for the Pennsyl-		
vania Crime Commission:		
(1) "Organized Crime and Racketeering		
Seminar" - To fund a seminar on organized		
crime and racketeering. Federal appropriation	12,000	
Section 227. State Ethics Commission.—	12,000	
The following amounts are appropriated to		
the State Ethics Commission:	Federal	State
For the salaries, wages and all necessary	 	7000
expenses for the work of the State Ethics		
Commission.		

State appropriation..... Section 228. Additional allocation of funds by Governor.—The following amounts

are appropriated to the Governor:

For distribution by the Office of the Budget to the various departments and agencies of the Commonwealth financed wholly or partially by the General Fund to meet the increased costs of employee's salaries, wages and benefits resulting from labor negotiations, and for any related general increase in salaries, wages and benefits granted to nonunion employees.

State appropriation.....

Section 229. Pennsylvania Emergency Agency.—The Management following

amounts are appropriated to the Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency:

For the Office of Fire Safety. Because sufficient State funds have been appropriated in the general government operations appropriation to cover all administrative activities, no funds appropriated to the Office of Fire Safety may be used for administrative expenses of the Pennsylvania Emergency Management Agency.

State appropriation..... Section 230. State Employees' Retirement Board.—The following amounts are appropriated to the State Employees' Retire-

ment Board:

For distribution by the Office of the Budget to the various departments and agencies of the Commonwealth financed wholly or partially by the General Fund to meet the increased costs resulting from a cost-of-living increase provided to annuitants. No funds from this appropriation may be spent until enabling legislation is enacted.

State appropriation.....

SUBPART B LEGISLATIVE DEPARTMENT

Section 251. Senate.—The following amounts are appropriated to the Senate:

For the salaries, wages and all necessary expenses for the following purposes:

736,000

Federal State

44,000,000

Federal State

862,000

Federal State

4,331,000

Federal

State

Salaries of Senators.	
State appropriation	3,300,000
Salaries of employees of the President of	
the Senate.	
State appropriation	147,000
Salaries and wages of employees of the	,
Chief Clerk and all necessary expenses to be	
allocated and disbursed at the direction of the	
President pro tempore.	
State appropriation	2,900,000
Salaries, wages and expenses of employees	_,,,,,,,,
of the Senate to be disbursed at the direction	
of the President pro tempore.	
State appropriation	4,300,000
Incidental expenses for payment of mainte-	4,500,000
nance, charpersons and other expenses of the	
Senate.	
	1 100 000
State appropriation	1,100,000
For payment of postage for the Chief	
Clerk and Legislative Journal.	225.000
State appropriation	235,000
The above appropriations for postage and	
for incidental expenses shall be paid prior to	
the payment of such expenses on warrant of	
the State Treasurer in favor of the Chief	
Clerk upon the presentation of requisitions	
for the same: Provided, That the total	
amount of requisitions for advancements,	
less the total amount of expenditures made as	
certified by such officer to the State Treas-	
urer, shall not exceed the amount of the bond	
of the officer having control of the disburse-	
ment from the funds advanced.	
Contingent expenses:	
President.	
State appropriation	5,000
President pro tempore.	
State appropriation	20,000
Floor Leader (R).	
State appropriation	6,000
Floor Leader (D).	•
State appropriation	6,000
Whip (R).	-,
State appropriation	4,000
Whip (D).	.,
State appropriation	4,000
	.,000

SESSION OF 1988	Act 1988-55A	2213
Chairman of the Caucus (R).		
State appropriation		3,000
Chairman of the Caucus (D).		2,000
State appropriation		3,000
Secretary of the Caucus (R).		2,000
State appropriation		3,000
Secretary of the Caucus (D).		-,000
State appropriation		3,000
Chairman of the Appropriations Commit-		-,
tee (R).		
State appropriation		6,000
Chairman of the Appropriations Commit-		·
tee (D).		
State appropriation		6,000
Chairman of the Policy Committee (R).		
State appropriation		2,000
Chairman of the Policy Committee (D).		•
State appropriation		2,000
Caucus Administrator (R).		·
State appropriation		2,000
Caucus Administrator (D).		
State appropriation		2,000
Upon presentation of requisitions for con-		
tingent expenses, such shall be paid on		
warrant of the State Treasurer directly to and		
in favor of the persons designated in such		
requisition as entitled to receive such com-		
pensation or expenses.		
Miscellaneous expenses:		
Mileage and Expenses, Senators: In addi-		
tion to annual reimbursement for expenses		
authorized by law for each member of the		
Senate, each member shall be entitled to		
reimbursement for actual expenses, not		
exceeding the sum of \$2,500 annually,		
incurred for lodging and meals while away		
from home on official legislative business,		
official postage and all other expenses inci-		
dental to legislative duties.	1.0	50.000
State appropriation	1,2	50,000
Legislative printing and expenses, includ-		
ing furniture, equipment, renovations and		
other expenses. State appropriation	4.2	00,000
Upon presentation of requisitions by the	0,2	00,000
Chief Clerk against the appropriations for		
legislative printing and expenses for		

expenses, such shall be paid on warrant of the State Treasurer directly to and in favor of the persons designated in such requisitions as entitled to receive such expenses.

LAWS OF PENNSYLVANIA

For the payment of the expenses of the Committee on Appropriations (R) for investigating schools, colleges, universities, correctional institutions, mental hospitals. medical and surgical hospitals, homes and other institutions and agencies supported, in whole or in part, by appropriations from the State Treasury in analyzing reports, expenditures and the general operation and administration of the institutions and agencies, in examining and analyzing requests of the same and of the various departments, boards and commissions of the Commonwealth, and for the collection of data from other states. attending seminars and conferences, and in cooperating and exchanging information with legislative budget and financial committees of other states, and for the necessary clerical assistance and other assistance, travel expenses and all other expenses deemed necessary by the chairman in compiling data and information connected with the work of the Senate in compiling comparative costs and other fiscal data and information for the use of the committee and the Senate during legislative sessions and during the interim between legislative sessions to the discharge of such duties. The committee shall have the authority to examine and inspect all properties. equipment, facilities, files, records and accounts of any State office, department, institution, board, committee, commission or agency or any institution or agency supported, in whole or in part, by appropriation from the State Treasury and to administer oaths. The Committee on Appropriations may issue subpoenas under the hand and seal of the chairman to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of any papers. books, accounts, documents and testimony touching matters properly being inquired into by the committee and to cause the deposition of witnesses either residing within or without

the State to be taken in the manner prescribed by law for taking depositions in civil actions. Upon presentation of requisitions by the Chief Clerk for such compensation or expenses, such shall be paid on warrant of the State Treasurer directly to and in favor of the persons designated in such requisition as entitled to receive such compensation or expenses.

State appropriation..... For the payment of the expenses of the Committee on Appropriations (D), designated by a majority vote of the Minority Party Senate Caucus (D), for investigating schools, colleges, universities, correctional institutions, mental hospitals, medical and surgical hospitals, homes and other institutions and agencies supported, in whole or in part, by appropriations from the State Treasury in analyzing reports, expenditures, and the general operation and administration of the institutions and agencies, in examining and analyzing requests of the same and of the various departments, boards and commissions of the Commonwealth, and for the collection of data from other states, attending seminars and conferences, and in cooperating and exchanging information with legislative budget and financial committees of other states, and for the necessary clerical assistance and other assistance, travel expenses and all other expenses deemed necessary by the chairman in compiling data and information connected with the work of the committee in compiling comparative cost and other fiscal data and information for the use of the committee and the Senate during legislative sessions and during the interim between legislative sessions to the discharge of such duties. Upon presentation of requisitions by the Chief Clerk for such compensation or expenses, such shall be paid on warrant of the State Treasurer directly to and in favor of the persons designated in such requisition as entitled to receive such compensation or expenses.

1,100,000

State appropriation.....

1,100,000

For the Leadership Operations Account (R) for payment of salaries, wages and all other incidental expenses incurred in hiring personnel and staff for services which, in the opinion of the Floor Leader (R), may be required or arise during legislative sessions and during the interim between legislative sessions and for the payment of all other expenses related to the performance of Senate duties and responsibilities. Upon presentation of requisitions by the Chief Clerk for such compensation or expenses, such shall be paid on warrant of the State Treasurer directly to and in favor of the persons designated in such requisition as entitled to receive such compensation or expenses.

State appropriation.....

4,400,000

For the Leadership Operations Account (D) for payment of salaries, wages and all other incidental expenses incurred in hiring personnel and staff for services which, in the opinion of the Floor Leader (D), may be required or arise during legislative sessions and during the interim between legislative sessions and for the payment of all other expenses related to the performance of Senate duties and responsibilities. Upon presentation of requisitions by the Chief Clerk for such compensation or expenses, such shall be paid on warrant of the State Treasurer directly to and in favor of the persons designated in such requisition as entitled to receive such compensation or expenses.

State appropriation.....

4,400,000

For allocation in such amounts as may be designated by the Legislative Management Committee (R) to the several standing committees (other than the Committee on Appropriations) for payment of compensation of counsel, research assistants and other staff personnel hired to assist the members (R) of the Senate or its standing committees and for other necessary Senate expenses incurred. Upon presentation of requisitions by the Chief Clerk for such compensation or expenses, such shall be paid on warrant of the

State Treasurer directly to and in favor of the persons designated in such requisition as entitled to receive such compensation or expenses.

State appropriation.....

All appropriations made in this act or in any other fiscal year to any account of the Senate, except for the Committee on Appropriations (D) or the Committee on Appropriations (R) accounts, remaining unexpended and unencumbered on the effective date of this part, may be transferred by the Committee on Management Operations, by a vote of two-thirds of its members, in its discretion, to such Senate accounts as the committee deems necessary. Such power to transfer appropriations shall be limited to the 1988-1989 fiscal year.

Section 252. House of Representatives.—The following amounts are appropriated to the House of Representatives:

Chief Clerk and Legislative Journal.

State appropriation.....

For the payment of the expenses of the Committee on Appropriations (D) of the House of Representatives in investigating schools, colleges, universities, correctional institutions, mental hospitals, medical and surgical hospitals, homes and other institutions and agencies supported, in whole or in part, by appropriations from the State Treasury in analyzing reports, expenditures and the general operation and administration of the institutions and agencies in examining and analyzing requests of the same and of the various departments, boards and commissions of the Commonwealth, and for the collection of data from other states, attending seminars and conferences, and in cooperating and exchanging information with legislative budget and financial committees of other states, and any office expenses necessary to serve the committee and its chairman, and for the necessary clerical assistance and other assistance, travel expenses and all other expenses deemed necessary by the chairman in compiling data and information connected

3,500,000

Federal

State

525,000

with the work of the committee in compiling comparative cost and other fiscal data and information for the use of the committee and the House of Representatives during legislative sessions and during the interim between legislative sessions to the discharge of such duties. The committee shall have the authority to examine and inspect all properties. equipment, facilities, files, records and accounts of any State office, department, institution, board, committee, commission or agency or any institution or agency supported, in whole or in part, by appropriation from the State Treasury and to administer oaths. The sum appropriated shall be paid on warrant of the State Treasurer in favor of the chairman of the committee on the presentation of his requisition for the same. The Chairman of the Committee on Appropriations (D) shall, not later than 30 days after the termination of his term of office or until his successor is elected and also within 30 days after the adjournment of any regular or special session, file an account, together with supporting documents whenever possible, in the office of the Committee on Appropriations, of the committee's expenses since the filing of the prior account.

State appropriation.....

For the payment of the expenses of one

member of the Committee on Appropriations
(R) of the House of Representatives, designated by a majority vote of the House of Representatives Caucus (R), for investigating schools, colleges, universities, correctional institutions, mental hospitals, medical and surgical hospitals, homes and other institutions and agencies supported, in whole or in part, by appropriations from the State Trea-

and analyzing requests of the same and of the various departments, boards and commissions of the Commonwealth and for the collection of data from other states, attending seminars and conferences, and in cooperating

sury in analyzing reports, expenditures, and the general operation and administration of the institutions and agencies in examining 1,100,000

and exchanging information with legislative budget and financial committees of other states, and any office expenses necessary to serve the committee and its chairman, and for the necessary clerical assistance, and other assistance, travel expenses and all other expenses deemed necessary by the chairman in compiling data and information connected with the work of the committee in compiling comparative cost and other fiscal data and information for the use of the committee and the House of Representatives during legislative sessions and during the interim between legislative sessions to the discharge of such duties. The sum appropriated shall be paid on warrant of the State Treasurer in favor of the member so designated by the majority vote of the House of Representatives Caucus (R) on the presentation of his requisition for the same. Such member so designated shall, not later than 30 days after the termination of his term of office or until his successor is elected and also within 30 days after the adjournment of any regular or special session, file an account, together with supporting documents whenever possible, in the office of the Committee on Appropriations (R) of the House of Representatives, of his expenses since the filing of the prior account.

State appropriation.....

Section 253. Legislative Reference Bureau.—The following amounts are appropriated to the Legislative Reference Bureau:

For the salaries, wages and all necessary expenses for the work of the Legislative Reference Bureau, including the Documents Law Section.

Advance copies of statutes and volumes of the Laws of Pennsylvania shall be printed under contracts entered into by the Legislative Reference Bureau (without the intervention of any other State agency or officer and without regard to any other statute regulating printing contracts) and distributed (without regard to any other statute regulating distribution of laws) as determined by the bureau, and moneys from sales shall be paid 1,100,000

Federal State

Federal

to the bureau or the Department of General Services, as the bureau shall determine, which shall pay the same into the State Treasury to the credit of the General Fund. Such moneys are hereby appropriated from the General Fund to the Legislative Reference Bureau for the editing, printing and distribution of such laws and related expenses.

State appropriation.....

3,455,000

State

Section 254. Joint State Government Commission.—The following amounts are appropriated to the Joint State Government Commission:

For the salaries, wages and all necessary expenses for the work of the Joint State Government Commission upon presentation of requisitions for the same from the chairman to be paid on warrants of the State Treasurer directly to and in favor of the person named in said requisition. The chairman shall file an accounting of the expenses, together with supporting documents whenever possible, in the office of the Joint State Government Commission.

State appropriation.....

900,000

1,000,000

Section 255. Capitol Preservation Committee.—The following amounts are appropriated to the Capitol Preservation Committee:

Federal

State

For the operation of the Capitol Preservation Committee. All appropriations made in this act or in any other fiscal year to the Capitol Preservation Committee for the restoration of the Capitol remaining unexpended and unencumbered on the effective date of this part may be expended by the committee for such restoration, including any construction, alterations, structural modifications, and relocations of existing facilities and services as may be necessary or incidental to accomplish any such restoration.

State appropriation.....

215,000

Section 256. Health Care Cost Containment Council.—The following amounts are appropriated to the Health Care Cost Containment Council:

For the Health Care Cost Containment Council.

State appropriation.....

Section 257. Center for Rural Pennsylvania.—The following amounts are appropriated to the Center for Rural Pennsylvania:

For the Center for Rural Pennsylvania.

State appropriation.....

Federal State

1,532,000

State

400,000

SUBPART C JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT

Section 281. Supreme Court.—The following amounts are appropriated to the Supreme Court:

For the Court Administrator, including the expenses of the Judicial Council of Pennsylvania and the District Justice Administrator. No funds from this appropriation shall be used for travel or other expenses for active judges. Funds from this appropriation may be used for the operation of the Pennsylvania Board of Law Examiners. All funds so spent shall be repaid in full to the Administrative Office of the Pennsylvania Courts without interest or charges from the augmenting revenues of the Pennsylvania Board of Law Examiners.

State appropriation..... Section 282. Commonwealth Court.— The following amounts are appropriated to the Commonwealth Court:

For the salaries of judges, and for the salaries and expenses of employees. Senior judges working as active or senior judges a minimum of 75 days in the prior calendar year are to receive health benefits. No more than \$10,000 from this appropriation shall be used for travel or other expenses for active iudges.

State appropriation..... For home office expenses.

Federal

Federal

State

3,150,000

Federal

State

5,377,000

State appropriation......
Section 283. Courts of common pleas.—

The following amounts are appropriated to

the courts of common pleas:

For the courts of common pleas: including the salaries and expenses of judges; including the expenses of traveling judges; including the mileage in divided judicial districts; and the payment of a per diem salary, mileage and miscellaneous expenses to active visiting judges for the performance of their official duties. No printing, postage, telephone and supplies may be paid for from this appropriation. No expenses of any kind relating to education may be paid from this appropriation.

State appropriation.....

Section 284. Community courts - district justices.—The following amounts are appropriated to the community courts and district justices:

For the salaries and expenses of community court judges and district justices of the peace. Senior judges working a minimum number of days provided by the Supreme Court are to receive health benefits. Except for those printing costs relating to 42 Pa.C.S. § 3532 (relating to expenses), no other printing, postage, telephone and supplies may be paid for from this appropriation. No expenses of any kind relating to education may be paid from this appropriation.

State appropriation.....

Section 285. County court administration cost reimbursement.—The following amounts are appropriated for court costs:

For grants to counties for costs incurred by counties in the administration and operation of the offices of district justice, judge of traffic court or judge of municipal court. Grants shall be provided on the following basis: for each district justice, traffic court judge or municipal court judge authorized position, whether filled or vacant, \$30,000 per authorized position.

All grants shall be made to the county treasurer and, in cities of the first class coter-

1.597.000

Federal

State

33,310,000

Federal

State

27,270,000

Federal

State

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-55A 2223

minous	with	counties	of th	e first	class,	to	the
city trea	surei	: .					

State appropriation	17,130,000
---------------------	------------

PART III ENERGY CONSERVATION AND ASSISTANCE FUND

Section 301. Executive Offices.—The following amounts are appropriated to the		
Governor's Energy Council:	Federal	State
For energy conservation programs under		
the provisions of the Energy Conservation		
and Assistance Act. At least 75% of these		
funds must be used for those programs listed		
as priorities in section 7(b) of the Energy		
Conservation and Assistance Act		

PART IV PENNSYLVANIA ECONOMIC REVITALIZATION FUND

Federal	State
	21,500,000
	2,157,000
	10,000,000
	1,000,000
	1,000,000
	500,000
	250,000
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
	3,000,000
	200 000
	300,000
F. 11	C+ + -
rederai	State
	Federal

For recreational improvement and rehabilitation assistance. Not more than 5% of this appropriation may be used by the department for personnel, equipment and operating costs to administer the Recreational Improvement and Rehabilitation Program and to provide technical assistance to municipalities for both grant-related and other recreation and conservation-related services.

	6,000,000
Federal	State
	1,523,000
	Federal

PART V EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES OPERATING FUND

Section 501. Department of Health.—		
The following amounts are appropriated to		
the Department of Health:	Federal	State
For emergency medical services.		
State appropriation		6,000,000
For catastrophic medical and rehabilita-		
tion program.		
State appropriation		2.000.000

PART VI MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 601. Prior laws unaffected.—This act is not intended to be inconsistent with or to repeal any provision of any act enacted at this or any prior session of the General Assembly regulating the purchase of supplies, the ordering of printing and binding, the purchase, maintenance and use of automobiles, the method of making payments from the State Treasury for any purpose or the functioning of any administrative department, board or commission.

Section 602. Compliance with other law before funds available.—No appropriation made by this act to any department, board, commission or agency of the Executive Department shall be available unless and until the department, board, commission or agency has complied with sections 615 and 616 of the act of April 9, 1929 (P.L.177, No.175), known as The Administrative Code of 1929.

Section 603. Contracts prerequisite to encumbering or committing funds.—Funds for the purchase of supplies, materials and equipment shall not be deemed to be committed or encumbered until contracts covering the purchase have been entered into with the vendors.

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-55A 2225

Section 604. Minority business set-asides.—(a) Each department or other instrumentality of the Commonwealth listed in Subpart A of Part II, authorized to contract for buildings, highways, commodities, equipment, supplies or services, shall report to the General Assembly all information pertinent to anticipated procurement needs at the beginning of each fiscal year and each fiscal quarter thereafter.

- (b) As used in this section, the term "minority business" means a minority business enterprise as defined in the act of July 22, 1974 (P.L.598, No.206), known as the Pennsylvania Minority Business Development Authority Act.
- Section 605. Appropriation of funds from miscellaneous sources.—
 (a) In addition to the amounts appropriated by this act, moneys received in payment for food and household supplies furnished to employees and other persons, except inmates, by an institution, and moneys received from the proceeds from the sale of any products of the soil, meats, livestock, timber or other materials sold by the department shall be paid into the General Fund and are hereby appropriated out of the General Fund to the several respective institutions for the operation and maintenance of the institutions.
- (b) In addition to the amounts appropriated by this act, all moneys received from any other source, except the Federal Government, as contributions for the programs provided herein or as payment for services or materials furnished by one institution to another, except those collections designated as revenues, shall be paid into the General Fund and are hereby appropriated out of the General Fund for the purposes of the respective appropriations.
- (c) In addition to any funds specifically appropriated by this act, all moneys received by a department or agency of the Commonwealth from any other sources, except the Federal Government, as contributions or supplements to the department or agency for a program or administration of an act included in this act shall be paid into the General Fund and credited to the appropriation for that program or administration of the act.

Section 606. Lapsing of unused funds.—(a) Except as otherwise provided by law or in subsections (b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h) and (i), that part of all appropriations in Parts II, III, IV and V unexpended, uncommitted or unencumbered as of June 30, 1989, shall automatically lapse as of that date.

- (b) The appropriation in Part II to the Department of Community Affairs for housing and redevelopment assistance shall be a two-year continuing appropriation.
- (c) The appropriation in Part II to the Department of Environmental Resources for the Chesapeake Bay Pollution Abatement Program shall be a continuing appropriation.
- (d) The appropriation in Part II to the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency for loan forgiveness shall be a two-year continuing appropriation.
- (e) The appropriations in Part II to the Legislative Department shall be continuing appropriations.

- (f) The appropriations in section 301 of Part III shall be two-year continuing appropriations.
- (g) The appropriations in Part IV to the Department of Commerce for business infrastructure development, the small business incubator programs and the industrial resource centers shall be two-year continuing appropriations.
- (h) The appropriation in Part IV to the Department of Community Affairs for recreational improvement and rehabilitation assistance shall be a two-year continuing appropriation.
- (i) Notwithstanding provisions of section 1008(a) of the act of July 3, 1987 (P.L.459, No.9A), known as the General Appropriation Act of 1987, appropriations in section 401 relating to small business incubators Loans or Grants, higher educational industrial resource centers, and business infrastructure development shall be continuing until June 30, 1989.

Section 607. Construction with prior appropriation acts.—Any appropriation in Parts II, III and IV of this act which is the same as or similar to an appropriation in the act of June 29, 1988 (P.L.1956, No.5A), known as the General Appropriation Act of 1988, shall replace that appropriation.

Section 608. Deduction of expended appropriations under prior law.—Any money that has been appropriated and expended under the act of June 29, 1988 (P.L.1956, No.5A), known as the General Appropriation Act of 1988, shall be deducted from the corresponding appropriation in this act.

Section 609. Partial repeals.—

- (1) As much of section 206 of the act of June 29, 1988 (P.L.1956, No.5A), known as the General Appropriation Act of 1988, as relates to transfers to the Sunny Day Fund and the Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund are repealed.
- (2) As much of section 209 of the act of June 29, 1988 (P.L.1956, No.5A), known as the General Appropriation Act of 1988, as relates to marketing to attract business to the Commonwealth and marketing to attract tourist to the Commonwealth are repealed.
- (3) As much of section 210 of the act of June 29, 1988 (P.L.1956, No.5A), known as the General Appropriation Act of 1988, as relates to Federal augmentation appropriations for Centralia Recovery and the ARC-Innovative Housing Program are repealed.

PART VII EFFECTIVE DATE

Section 701. Effective date.—This act shall take effect immediately.

APPROVED—The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-56A

AN ACT

HB 2414

Appropriating and transferring amounts from the State Workmen's Insurance Fund to the Treasury Department and the General Fund.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated from the State Workmen's Insurance Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1988:
 - (1) The sum of \$25,000,000 is appropriated to the Treasury Department for transfer to the Sunny Day Fund.
 - (2) The sum of \$25,000,000 is appropriated to the Treasury Department for transfer to the Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund.
- Section 2. The sum of \$60,000,000 is hereby transferred from the State Workmen's Insurance Fund to the General Fund.
 - Section 3. This act shall take effect immediately.

APPROVED-The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-57A

AN ACT

HB 2370

Amending the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2118, No.14A), entitled "A supplement to the act of April 1, 1863 (P.L.213, No.227), entitled "An act to accept the grant of Public Lands, by the United States, to the several states, for the endowment of Agricultural Colleges," making appropriations for carrying the same into effect; providing for a basis for payments of such appropriations; and providing a method of accounting for the funds appropriated," adding an appropriation for the Biotech/Engineering Program.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. Section 1 of the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2118, No.14A), entitled "A supplement to the act of April 1, 1863 (P.L.213, No.227), entitled "An act to accept the grant of Public Lands, by the United States, to the several states, for the endowment of Agricultural Colleges," making appropriations for carrying the same into effect; providing for a basis for payments of such appropriations; and providing a method of accounting for the funds appropriated," is amended by adding an appropriation to read:

Section 1. In order to carry into effect the act of Congress, approved July 2, 1862, granting public land to the several states for educational purposes, and subsequent acts of Congress related thereto, and the act of the General Assembly of Pennsylvania accepting the provisions and conditions of said acts of Congress and pledging the faith of the State to carry the same into effect, the following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated to the Trustees of The Pennsylvania State University for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the purposes and in the amounts as shown:

* * *

APPROVED—The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-58A

AN ACT

HB 2371

* * *

Amending the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2122, No.15A), entitled "A supplement to the act of July 28, 1966 (3rd Sp.Sess., P.L.87, No.3), entitled 'An act providing for the establishment and operation of the University of Pittsburgh as an instrumentality of the Commonwealth to serve as a State-related university in the higher education system of the Commonwealth; providing for change of name; providing for the composition of the board of trustees; terms of trustees, and the power and duties of such trustees; authorizing appropriations in amounts to be fixed annually by the General Assembly; providing for the auditing of accounts of expenditures from said appropriations; providing for public support and capital improvements; authorizing the issuance of bonds exempt from taxation within the Commonwealth; requiring the chancellor to make an annual report of the operations of the University of Pittsburgh," making appropriations for carrying the same into effect; providing for a basis for payments of such appropriations; and providing a method of accounting for the funds appropriated," adding an appropriation for U-PARC.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. Section 1 of the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2122, No.15A) entitled, "A supplement to the act of July 28, 1966 (3rd Sp. Sess., P.L.87, No.3), entitled 'An act providing for the establishment and operation of the University of Pittsburgh as an instrumentality of the Commonwealth to serve as a State-related university in the higher education system of the Commonwealth; providing for change of name; providing for the composition of the board of trustees; terms of trustees, and the power and duties of such trustees; authorizing appropriations in amounts to be fixed annually by the General Assembly; providing for the auditing of accounts of expenditures from said appropriations; providing for public support and capital improvements; authorizing the issuance of bonds exempt from taxation within the Commonwealth; requiring the chancellor to make an annual report of the operations of the University of Pittsburgh,' making appropriations for carrying the same into effect; providing for a basis for payments of such appropriations; and providing a method of accounting for the funds appropriated," vetoed in part, is amended by adding an appropriation to read:

Section 1. The following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated to the Trustees of the University of Pittsburgh for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the purpose and in the amounts as shown:

APPROVED—The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-59A

AN ACT

HB 2372

Amending the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2126, No.16A), entitled "A supplement to the act of November 30, 1965 (P.L.843, No.355), entitled 'An act providing for the establishment and operation of Temple University as an instrumentality of the Commonwealth to serve as a State-related university in the higher education system of the Commonwealth; providing for change of name; providing for the composition of the board of trustees; terms of trustees, and the power and duties of such trustees; providing for preference to Pennsylvania residents in tuition; providing for public support and capital improvements; authorizing appropriations in amounts to be fixed annually by the General Assembly; providing for the auditing of accounts of expenditures from said appropriations; authorizing the issuance of bonds exempt from taxation within the Commonwealth; requiring the President to make an annual report of the operations of Temple University,' making appropriations for carrying the same into effect; providing for a basis for payments of such appropriations; and providing a method of accounting for the funds appropriated," adding an appropriation for the Science and Technology Campus and Jobs Program.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. Section 1(1) of the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2126, No.16A), entitled "A supplement to the act of November 30, 1965 (P.L.843, No.355), entitled 'An act providing for the establishment and operation of Temple University as an instrumentality of the Commonwealth to serve as a Staterelated university in the higher education system of the Commonwealth; providing for change of name; providing for the composition of the board of trustees; terms of trustees, and the power and duties of such trustees: providing for preference to Pennsylvania residents in tuition; providing for public support and capital improvements; authorizing appropriations in amounts to be fixed annually by the General Assembly; providing for the auditing of accounts of expenditures from said appropriations; authorizing the issuance of bonds exempt from taxation within the Commonwealth; requiring the President to make an annual report of the operations of Temple University,' making appropriations for carrying the same into effect; providing for a basis for payments of such appropriations; and providing a method of accounting for the funds appropriated," vetoed in part, is amended and the section is amended by adding an appropriation to read:

Section 1. The following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated to the Trustees of Temple University for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the purposes and in the amounts as shown:

(1) For educational and general expenses, including the sum of \$100,000 for maxillofacial prosthodontics........... \$113,084,000

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-59A 2231

No. 1988-60A

AN ACT

HB 2373

Amending the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2130, No.17A), entitled "A supplement to the act of July 7, 1972 (P.L.743, No.176), entitled 'An act providing for the establishment and operation of Lincoln University as an instrumentality of the Commonwealth to serve as a State-related institution in the higher education system of the Commonwealth; providing for change of name; providing for the composition of the board of trustees; terms of trustees, and the power and duties of such trustees; providing for preference to Pennsylvania residents in tuition: authorizing appropriations in amounts to be fixed annually by the General Assembly; providing for the auditing of accounts of expenditures from said appropriations; providing for public support and capital improvements; authorizing the issuance of bonds exempt from taxation within the Commonwealth; requiring the President to make an annual report of the operations of Lincoln University,' making appropriations for carrying the same into effect; providing for a basis for payments of such appropriations; and providing a method of accounting for the funds appropriated," providing an additional appropriation for the International Affairs Institute.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. Section 1 of the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2130, No.17A), entitled "A supplement to the act of July 7, 1972 (P.L.743, No.176), entitled 'An act providing for the establishment and operation of Lincoln University as an instrumentality of the Commonwealth to serve as a State-related institution in the higher education system of the Commonwealth; providing for change of name: providing for the composition of the board of trustees: terms of trustees, and the power and duties of such trustees; providing for preference to Pennsylvania residents in tuition; authorizing appropriations in amounts to be fixed annually by the General Assembly; providing for the auditing of accounts of expenditures from said appropriations; providing for public support and capital improvements; authorizing the issuance of bonds exempt from taxation within the Commonwealth; requiring the President to make an annual report of the operations of Lincoln University,' making appropriations for carrying the same into effect; providing for a basis for payments of such appropriations; and providing a method of accounting for the funds appropriated," vetoed in part, is amended by adding an appropriation to read:

Section 1. The following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated to the Trustees of Lincoln University, Chester County, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the purposes and in the amounts as shown:

* * *

Act 1988-60A

2233

APPROVED-The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-61A

AN ACT

HB 2374

* * *

Amending the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2134, No.18A), entitled "An act making appropriations to the Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania," increasing certain appropriations; and adding appropriations for New Bolton and for a dairy cattle research facility.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. Section 1(5), (6) and (8) of the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2134, No.18A), entitled "An act making appropriations to the Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania," vetoed in part, are amended and appropriations are added to read:

Section 1. The following sums, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated to the Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the purposes and in the amounts as shown:

(5) For the New Bolton Animal Center	[3,338,000]
(6) For the Center for Animal Health and Productivity.	3,509,000 [0] 1,153,000
* * * (8) For food and animal clinics and services	[1,856,000] 1,890,000
(10) For an incinerator at the New Bolton Animal Center	400,000
(11) For a dairy cattle research and teaching facility Section 2. This act shall take effect immediately.	322,000

APPROVED—The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-62A

AN ACT

HB 2375

Making appropriations to the Hahnemann University, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. (a) The sum of \$4,869,000 is hereby appropriated to the Hahnemann University, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction in the Doctor of Medicine program.
- (b) The sum of \$702,000 is hereby appropriated to the Hahnemann University, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the general maintenance of the Hahnemann University, including the Allied Health, Professions and Graduate School of the Hahnemann University, and student aid.
- Section 2. Payments to the Hahnemann University on account of the appropriations provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Secretary of Education on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.
- Section 3. The Hahnemann University shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The Hahnemann University shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 5. All sums of money paid to the Hahnemann University pursuant to the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2150, No.32A), entitled "An act making appropriations to the Hahnemann University, Philadelphia," shall be credited toward and deducted from the amount appropriated in this act.
- Section 6. The act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2150, No.32A), entitled "An act making appropriations to the Hahnemann University, Philadelphia," is repealed.
- Section 7. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-63A

AN ACT

HB 2380

Making an appropriation to the Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture at Doylestown.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$438,000 is hereby appropriated to the Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture at Doylestown for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction and student aid. The amount appropriated includes a one-time grant of \$42,000.
- Section 2. Payments to the Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Education in equal quarterly payments.
- Section 3. The Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 5. All sums of money paid to the Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture pursuant to the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2165, No.45A), entitled "An act making an appropriation to the Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture at Doylestown," shall be credited toward and deducted from the amount appropriated in this act.
- Section 6. The act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2165, No.45A), entitled "An act making an appropriation to the Delaware Valley College of Science and Agriculture at Doylestown," is repealed.
- Section 7. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-64A

AN ACT

HB 2381

Making an appropriation to The University of the Arts, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$1,047,000 is hereby appropriated to The University of the Arts, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction and student aid. The appropriated amount includes a one-time grant of \$206,000. The University of the Arts consists of the institutions formerly known as the Philadelphia Colleges of the Arts and the Philadelphia College of Performing Arts.
- Section 2. Payments to The University of the Arts on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Education in equal quarterly payments.
- Section 3. The University of the Arts shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The University of the Arts shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statement in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 5. All sums of money paid to The University of the Arts pursuant to the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2144, No.26A), entitled "An act making an appropriation to the Philadelphia University of the Arts, Philadelphia," shall be credited toward and deducted from the amount appropriated in this act.
- Section 6. The act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2144, No.26A), entitled "An act making an appropriation to the Philadelphia University of the Arts, Philadelphia," is repealed.
- Section 7. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-65A

AN ACT

HB 2386

Making an appropriation to the Williamson Free School of Mechanical Trades in Delaware County.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$97,000 is hereby appropriated to the Williamson Free School of Mechanical Trades in Delaware County for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for operation and maintenance of the school. The amount appropriated includes a one-time grant of \$26,000.
- Section 2. Payments to the Williamson Free School of Mechanical Trades on account of the appropriation in section 1 shall be made by the Secretary of Education in equal quarterly payments.
- Section 3. The Williamson Free School of Mechanical Trades shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. All sums of money paid to the Williamson Free School of Mechanical Trade pursuant to the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2170, No.50A), entitled "An act making an appropriation to the Williamson Free School of Mechanical Trades in Delaware County," shall be credited toward and deducted from the amount appropriated in this act.
- Section 5. The act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2170, No.50A), entitled "An act making an appropriation to the Williamson Free School of Mechanical Trades in Delaware County," is repealed.
- Section 6. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-66A

AN ACT

HB 2388

Making an appropriation to the Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine, Philadelphia.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sum of \$1,191,000 is hereby appropriated to the Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for instruction in the Doctor of Podiatric Medicine program. The appropriated amount includes a one-time grant of \$98,000.
- Section 2. Payments to the Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine on account of the appropriation provided in section 1 shall be made quarterly by the Secretary of Education on the basis of costs during the fiscal year.
- Section 3. The Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Education shall prescribe.
- Section 4. The Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine shall report its revenues and expenditures and present its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and procedures for educational institutions as set forth in the "Higher Education Finance Manual (1975)" and the "Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Budget Instructions for the State System of Higher Education, State-Related Universities and Non-State-Related Colleges and Universities."
- Section 5. All sums of money paid to the Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine pursuant to the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2146, No.28A), entitled, "An act making an appropriation to the Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine, Philadelphia," shall be credited toward and deducted from the amount appropriated in this act.
- Section 6. The act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2146, No.28A), entitled, "An act making an appropriation to the Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine, Philadelphia," is repealed.
- Section 7. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-67A

AN ACT

HB 2390

Making an appropriation to the Fox Chase Institute for Cancer Research, Philadelphia, for the operation and maintenance of the cancer research program.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$725,000 is hereby appropriated to the Fox Chase Institute for Cancer Research, Philadelphia, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the operation and maintenance of the cancer research program. Payment of this appropriation shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments.

Section 2. The Fox Chase Institute for Cancer Research shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.

Section 3. All sums of money paid to the Fox Chase Institute for Cancer Research, Philadelphia, pursuant to the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2157, No.37A), entitled "An act making an appropriation to the Fox Chase Institute for Cancer Research, Philadelphia, for the operation and maintenance of the cancer research program," shall be credited toward and deducted from the amount appropriated in this act.

Section 4. The act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2157, No.37A), entitled "An act making an appropriation to the Fox Chase Institute for Cancer Research, Philadelphia, for the operation and maintenance of the cancer research program," is repealed.

Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED-The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-68A

AN ACT

HB 2398

Making an appropriation to the Burn Foundation of Greater Delaware Valley.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

Section 1. The sum of \$368,000 is hereby appropriated to the Burn Foundation of Greater Delaware Valley for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for outpatient and inpatient treatment. Payment of this appropriation shall be made by the Secretary of Health in equal quarterly payments.

Section 2. The Burn Foundation of Greater Delaware Valley shall provide such information as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this act and in such form and manner as the Department of Health shall prescribe.

Section 3. All sums of money paid to the Burn Foundation of Greater Delaware Valley pursuant to the act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2169, No.49A), entitled "An act making an appropriation to the Burn Foundation of Greater Delaware Valley," shall be credited toward and deducted from the amount appropriated in this act.

Section 4. The act of July 13, 1988 (P.L.2169, No.49A), entitled "An act making an appropriation to the Burn Foundation of Greater Delaware Valley," is repealed.

Section 5. This act shall take effect July 1, 1988, or immediately, whichever is later.

APPROVED—The 14th day of October, A. D. 1988.

\$3,000,000

No. 1988-69A

AN ACT

SB 1640

Appropriating money from the Sunny Day Fund to the Department of Commerce for various projects throughout this Commonwealth for fiscal year 1988-1989.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. The sums set forth in this act, or as much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby specifically appropriated from the Sunny Day Fund to the Department of Commerce for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the projects listed to enhance economic development and the creation of jobs in this Commonwealth in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 1 of the act of July 1, 1985 (P.L.120, No.32), known as the Sunny Day Fund Act.
- Section 2. The following amounts are appropriated to the Department of Commerce to induce companies to locate large industrial, manufacturing or research and development enterprises within this Commonwealth:
 - (1) For the purpose of making a loan to Epsilon Products, Incorporated, to locate a manufacturing facility in Marcus Hook, Delaware County. It is estimated that this project will create 200 new jobs within three years of operation.

(3) For the purpose of making a loan to Allegheny Ludlum, Incorporated, to assist in its acquisition of the USX Vandergrift facility in Westmoreland County. It is estimated that this project will create approximately 300 jobs within three years of operation.

(4) For the purpose of making a loan to Glass Adventures, Incorporated, or its affiliate, to locate a glass manufacturing facility in Washington County. It is estimated that this project will create approximately 500 new jobs within three years of operation.

SESSION OF 1988 Act 1988-69A 2243

(5) For the purpose of making a loan to Aluglas of Pennsylvania, Incorporated, to locate a manufacturing facility in Allegheny County. It is estimated that this project will create 367 jobs within three years of operation.

(6) For the purpose of making a loan to UNISYS to locate its corporate training facility in Montgomery County. It is expected that this project will create 300 new jobs within three years of operation.

(7) For the purpose of making a loan to PPG Industries, Inc., to locate its Chemical Division Research and Development Group in Monroeville, Allegheny County. It is expected that this project will create 250 new jobs within three years of operation.

Section 3. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the appropriations in section 2 shall be loaned at an annual interest rate that in no case shall be less than the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority's rate for the area in which the project is located and for a term that shall be the same as the term for an equivalent Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority project. Private companies which receive Sunny Day Fund assistance but fail to make the investment in the enterprise development as specified in section 2 shall be liable for the repayment of all Sunny Day Fund moneys, including any accrued interest thereon and any penalties set by the Secretary of Commerce. Private companies which receive Sunny Day Fund assistance but fail to create the number of jobs specified in the approved loan or other agreements with the Commonwealth shall be liable for a penalty equal to an increase in the interest charged to 2% greater than the current prime interest rate for the remainder of the loan, unless the penalty is waived by the Secretary of Commerce because the failure is due to circumstances outside the control of the private company. The Secretary of Commerce shall consult with the chairmen of the Appropriations Committees of the Senate and the House of Representatives prior to the establishment of waiver of penalties.

Section 4. For a period equal to the term of assistance provided each project approved under this act, the Department of Commerce shall provide a written report on the status of each project to the Secretary of the Senate and the Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives by June 30 of each year. This report shall contain, at a minimum, information pertaining to the specific use of the Sunny Day Fund money, the interest rate and term of the Sunny Day Fund loan, the amount of principal outstanding and interest due on the loan, and the number of jobs created by the project. All recipients of funds under this act shall be required to provide any and all information requested by the Department of Commerce for the purpose of this act.

Section 5. No funds under this act shall be awarded by the Department of Commerce after June 30, 1989. Any funds from this appropriation remaining unexpended or unencumbered on June 30, 1990, shall automatically lapse into the Sunny Day Fund.

Section 6. This act shall take effect immediately.

APPROVED—The 17th day of December, A. D. 1988.

No. 1988-70A

AN ACT

HB 2412

Making appropriations to the Auditor General and the State Treasurer for transition expenses of the Attorney General, the State Treasurer and the Auditor General; making an appropriation to the Department of Commerce from the General Fund for a music theater festival in southeastern Pennsylvania for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989; and making an appropriation to the Department of Community Affairs for support of local drug enforcement and control programs.

The General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania hereby enacts as follows:

- Section 1. (a) The sum of \$75,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated to the Auditor General for fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for transition expenses for the Office of Attorney General.
- (b) The sum of \$75,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated to the Auditor General for fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for transition expenses for the Office of State Treasurer.
- Section 2. The sum of \$75,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated to the State Treasurer for fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for transition expenses for the Office of Auditor General.
- Section 3. The sum of \$100,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated from the General Fund to the Department of Commerce for a music theater festival in southeastern Pennsylvania, for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989.
- Section 4. The sum of \$50,000, or as much thereof as may be necessary, is hereby appropriated to the Department of Community Affairs for the fiscal year July 1, 1988, to June 30, 1989, for the support of local drug enforcement and control programs in the City of Chester.

Section 5. This act shall take effect immediately.

APPROVED—The 21st day of December, A. D. 1988.

